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In the opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the 2012 Bonds (as defined hereafter) is not includable in
gross income for purposes of federal income taxation under existing statutes, requlations, rulings and court
decisions, subject to the condition described in “TAX MATTERS” herein and interest on the 2012 Bonds is
not treated as an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the “Code”) for purposes of the individual and corporate alternative minimum taxes. However, under the
Code, such interest may be subject to certain other taxes affecting corporate holders of the 2012 Bonds. Under
existing law, the 2012 Bonds, interest on the 2012 Bonds and their transfer shall be exempt from taxation by
the State of Delaware and its political subdivisions except for estate, inheritance or gift taxes imposed by the
State of Delaware. For a more complete discussion, see “TAX MATTERS” herein.

DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

$222,870,000
Transportation System Senior Revenue Bonds, Series 2012

Dated: Date of Issuance Due: July 1, as shown below

The Transportation System Senior Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 (the “2012 Bonds”) will be issued in book-entry
only form. Beneficial owners of 2012 Bonds will not receive physical delivery of Bond certificates. Principal and
interest payments on the 2012 Bonds are to be made to The Depository Trust Company or its nominee as record owner
of the 2012 Bonds. Interest will be payable January 1, 2013 and thereafter semi-annually on each January 1 and July 1.

The 2012 Bonds maturing on and after July 1, 2023 are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity, at the
option of the Delaware Transportation Authority (the “Authority”), in whole or in part at any time on or after July 1, 2022,
in any order of maturity selected by the Authority and within any maturity by lot, at a redemption price equal to 100% of
the principal amount of the 2012 Bonds to be redeemed plus interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date.

MATURITY DATES, PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS, INTEREST RATES AND PRICES

Due Principal Interest Due Principal Interest
(July 1) Amount ($) Rate (%) Price Yield (%) (Julyl) Amount ($) Rate (%) Price Yield (%)

2013 2,245,000 3.000 103.441 0.180 2019 21,555,000 5.000 122.336 1.700
2014 9,085,000 5.000 110.001 0.470 2020 12,715,000 5.000 123.064 1.950
2015 9,945,000 5.000 113.675 0.700 2021 23,100,000 5.000 123.628 2.160
2016 5,395,000 3.000 108.506 0.940 2022 30,280,000 5.000 123.850 2.360
2017 25,600,000 5.000 119.626 1.120 2023 24,800,000 5.000 122.222* 2,520
2018 38,800,000 5.000 121.311 1.410 2024 19,350,000 3.000 101.319*%  2.850

* Priced to first call date of July 1, 2022.

The 2012 Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority, payable solely from and secured by a pledge and
assignment of Pledged Revenue (as defined hereafter). See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS.” The 2012 Bonds are
secured on a parity with other Transportation System Senior Revenue Bonds which have been issued by the Authority
and remain outstanding. The Authority may issue additional bonds which are secured on a parity with all such Senior
Bonds. THE 2012 Bonds DO NOT CONSTITUTE A DEBT OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE OR OF ANY POLITICAL
SUBDIVISION, AGENCY OR INSTRUMENTALITY THEREOF, OTHER THAN THE AUTHORITY, OR A PLEDGE OF
THE GENERAL TAXING POWER OR THE FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE OR ANY SUCH
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION, AGENCY OR INSTRUMENTALITY.

The 2012 Bonds are offered when, as and if issued and received by the underwriters, subject to the issuance
of a legal opinion as to validity by Bond Counsel, Saul Ewing LLP, Wilmington, Delaware (“Bond Counsel”) and
certain other conditions. A Deputy Attorney General of the State of Delaware will opine as to certain legal matters for
the Authority. It is expected that the 2012 Bonds will be available for delivery through the facilities of The Depository
Trust Company in New York, New York, on or about April 11, 2012.

Dated: April 4, 2012
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No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the Delaware Transportation
Authority or the Underwriters to give any information or to make any representations other than those
contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or representations must
not be relied upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing. This Official Statement does not
constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the 2012 Bonds
by any person, in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or
sale. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the
delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any
implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Authority or the State of Delaware since the
date hereof. This Official Statement is distributed in connection with the sale of securities referred to herein
and may not be reproduced or used in whole for any other purpose. In no instance may this Official
Statement be reproduced or used in part.

IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING OF THE 2012 Bonds, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY
OVERALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET
PRICE OF SUCH BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN
THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY
TIME.

THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IS INTENDED TO REFLECT FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES
ON THE DATE OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT OR ON SUCH OTHER DATE OR AT SUCH
OTHER TIME AS IDENTIFIED HEREIN. NO ASSURANCE CAN BE GIVEN THAT SUCH
INFORMATION MAY NOT BE MISLEADING AT A LATER DATE. CONSEQUENTLY, RELIANCE
ON THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT AT TIMES SUBSEQUENT TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE 2012
BONDS SHOULD NOT BE MADE ON THE ASSUMPTION THAT ANY SUCH FACTS OR
CIRCUMSTANCES ARE UNCHANGED. THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE
AUTHORITY MAY BE OBTAINED BY WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION, FINANCE, P.O. BOX 778, DOVER, DELAWARE 19903.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT
Delaware Transportation Authority

$222,870,000
Transportation System Senior Revenue Bonds, Series 2012

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement (including the cover page, graphs and the appendices hereto, the “Official
Statement”) sets forth information in connection with the issuance of $222,870,000 aggregate principal
amount of Transportation System Senior Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 (the “2012 Bonds”) by the Delaware
Transportation Authority (the “Authority”), a body corporate and politic constituting a public
instrumentality of The State of Delaware (the “State”). The 2012 Bonds, together with the Authority’s other
Transportation System Senior Revenue Bonds which have been or may be issued in the future on a parity
with the 2012 Bonds, and remain outstanding from time to time, are herein referred to collectively as the
“Senior Bonds”. The Authority also has the power to issue Transportation System Junior Revenue Bonds
(the “Junior Bonds™). As hereinafter more fully described, the Junior Bonds would have a lien on the
Pledged Revenue, subordinate to the lien of the Senior Bonds. There are no Junior Bonds outstanding.

The 2012 Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Delaware Transportation Authority Act, Chapter
13, Title 2, Delaware Code, as amended, and the Transportation Trust Fund Act, Chapter 14, Title 2,
Delaware Code, as amended (collectively, the “Act”) and a Trust Agreement, dated as of August 1, 1988, by
and between the Authority and Wilmington Trust Company, Wilmington, Delaware (“WTC”) (WTC, not in
its individual capacity but solely as trustee, the “Trustee”), as supplemented and amended (the Trust
Agreement as so supplemented and amended is hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”).

This Official Statement contains, among other topics, a description of the current Capital
Transportation Program and the sources of funding therefor; the security for the 2012 Bonds; the terms of
the 2012 Bonds; and the powers, responsibilities, membership and projected operations of the Authority and
the Delaware Department of Transportation (referred to herein as either the “Department” or “DelDOT”).

Capitalized words and terms used in this Official Statement and not defined herein, if defined in the
Agreement, shall have the same meanings herein as are ascribed to such words and terms in the Agreement.
See APPENDIX B, “Definitions”. References herein to the Agreement, the Act and the Bonds do not
purport to be complete. Copies of the Agreement are available upon request to the Authority.

DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
General; Relation to the Department of Transportation

The Authority is a body corporate and politic constituting an instrumentality of the State which has
been established and is authorized to create an economical, efficient and unified system of air, water,
vehicular, public and specialized transportation in the State. The Act, however, specifically excludes the
following from the jurisdiction of the Authority: the New Castle County Airport, the Sussex County
Airport, the Port of Wilmington and the Wilmington Parking Authority facilities. Actions by the Authority,
including the issuance of debt, are taken by resolution of the Secretary of the Department, the Director of
Finance of the Department and the Transportation Trust Fund Administrator. The Department has overall
responsibility for coordinating and developing comprehensive, multi-modal transportation planning and
policy for the State. The Department is headed by the Secretary of Transportation who is appointed by the
Governor, subject to confirmation by the State Senate.
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Powers and Responsibilities of the Authority

The Act gives the Authority broad powers in order to effectuate its statutory purposes of creating a
unified transportation system for the State. It has the power to make and enforce rules and regulations; and
to establish, fix and revise, and charge and collect charges, fares, fees, rates, rentals and tolls for the use of
any transportation facility it operates. The Authority is empowered to create subsidiaries to perform its
duties and functions. The Authority also has the power to issue bonds, with the approval of the State, and
the State's Bond Issuing Officers (the Governor, the Secretary of Finance, the Secretary of State and the
State Treasurer) (the “Bond Issuing Officers”), to finance improvements to the State's transportation
systems. Approval by the General Assembly of the State (the “General Assembly™) is not required for the
Authority to issue bonds to refund any of its bonds provided that a present value debt service savings is
achieved in such refunding. The Authority also has the power to pledge its revenue to secure its obligations.
To assist the Authority in carrying out its responsibilities, the State has created the Transportation Trust
Fund (“TTF”), which the Authority administers. See “THE TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND”.

Acting pursuant to its powers, the Authority owns the Delaware Turnpike, an 11.3 mile limited
access highway which is part of Interstate 95. The Authority also owns the Route 1 Toll Road which
consists of a 41-mile fully controlled access highway extending from a connection with the southern
terminus of the new Route 1 freeway just south of Wilmington to points south of Dover on U.S. Routes 13
and 113. See “SOURCES OF REVENUE FOR THE TRUST FUND - Toll Revenue” and “THE
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND”.

In addition, the Authority, through its subsidiary, the Delaware Transit Corporation, owns, operates
and subsidizes numerous transportation services and facilities throughout the State, including a public bus
system which operates primarily in and around Wilmington, the State's largest city; a public bus system in
and around Dover, the State's capital; a public bus system which operates on a seasonal basis in Eastern
Sussex County during the summer resort season; statewide specialized transportation services for the elderly
and handicapped; passenger rail service between Newark and Philadelphia; freight rail and aviation and
various statewide and local transit services.

Management of the Department and the Authority
The following persons fill key management positions in the Department and the Authority:

SHAILEN P. BHATT, was sworn-in by Governor Jack Markell as Secretary of DelDOT, on July 5,
2011. Secretary Bhatt has experience working on local, state and federal transportation issues and before
being confirmed by the Delaware State Senate for the position of Secretary at DelDOT, served as Associate
Administrator at the Federal Highway Administration (“FHWA”) in Washington, DC. In recent years, he
was responsible for setting policy and managing relationships with members of Congress and led FHWA’s
efforts in reauthorizing the nation’s surface transportation legislation. At FHWA, Secretary Bhatt played a
key role in establishing a Federal Highway Administration’s initiative on accelerated project delivery, called
Every Day Counts.

Before joining FHWA, Secretary Bhatt served as Deputy Executive Director with the Kentucky
Transportation Cabinet (“KYTC”) where he was responsible for advancing transportation projects and
addressing regional transportation needs. During his time at KYTC, he helped oversee a record construction
letting period for the state. Prior to that, he was Director of the Bowling Green/Warren County Metropolitan
Planning Organization.

NATALIE BARNHART, was named Director of Transportation Solutions and Chief Engineer of
the Department in March, 2009. She has spent the majority of her 20 year career in the Department's
Construction division starting as a project engineer, then moving to Area Engineer, District Construction
Engineer, and just prior to her recent promotion the Assistant Director of the South Construction Region.

2.
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She has a Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil Engineering from Virginia Tech and Masters in Business
Administration from the University of Delaware. She is also a registered Professional Engineer.

JENNIFER L. COHAN, became Director of the Division of Motor Vehicles in December 2007.
Her State government career has spanned nearly 20 years. She has held an array of positions with the
Division of Motor Vehicles. Ms. Cohan was also a Financial/Program Analyst and Program Manager of the
Clean Water Program at DNREC. Most recently she was a Senior Legislative Analyst for the Delaware
Legislature — Office of the Controller General. Ms. Cohan graduated summa cum laude from Wilmington
University where she received a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Management. She also received a
Master of Science Degree in Management — Public Administration from Wilmington University.

MARTI DOBSON, Director of Technology and Support Services, joined the Department in July
2003. Ms. Dobson has over 30 years experience in Information Technology, including employment in both
the public and private sector. She has worked in local and state government in the roles of government
employee and consultant for the State of Tennessee; Kent County, Delaware; Northampton County,
Pennsylvania; the City of Memphis, Tennessee; and the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and
Davidson County, Tennessee. Ms. Dobson holds a Bachelor of Science Degree from Carson Newman
College in Tennessee.

PAMELA LOWE, Director of Finance, joined the Department on March 12, 2012. Ms. Lowe is a
professional engineer and her background is in transportation construction and planning services. She first
joined the Idaho Transportation Department (“ITD”) in 1993, starting as a construction associate, planning
services manager, and then regional engineer. Ms. Lowe was the ITD’s first female district engineer. In
2004, she was named Administrator of the Department of Motor Vehicles, Deputy Director of ITD in 2006,
and ITD Director in 2007. She has also worked for the Arizona Department of Transportation, the Federal
Highway Administration, and in the private sector. She is a registered professional engineer in Idaho,
Oregon and Arizona.

BRIAN G. MOTYL, Assistant Director of Finance and Transportation Trust Fund Administrator,
joined the Department in May 2006. Mr. Motyl has over 12 years experience in state government. Prior to
coming to the Department, he was Fiscal Management Analyst with Department of Natural Resources and
Environmental Control where he was responsible for the financial management of the Water Pollution
Control State Revolving Fund, the Wastewater Management Account and various loan/grant portfolios. He
holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business/Public Management from the State University of New
York, College of Technology at Utica/Rome.

MARY BETH PALERMO, Director of Human Resources, joined the Department in October 2006.
Ms. Palermo has more than 20 years experience with state government. She holds two Bachelor of Science
Degrees (Accounting and Business Administration). Prior to joining the Department, she worked in various
state agencies, including serving for more than six years as the Director of Human Resources for the
Department of Health and Social Services.

MICHAEL STRANGE, Director of Planning, joined the Department in October 2006 as Deputy
Principle Assistant for Planning. He has over 40 years of domestic and international experience in planning
and economic development in the private, public and non-profit sectors in 45 countries. Mr. Strange came
to the Department from the American College of Physicians where he was a Senior Vice President for
Development for 6 years, having previously served for 15 years as the Chief Operating Officer for Franklin
Computer, preceded by 19 years in various international executive and academic positions. Mr. Strange has
a Bachelor of Science Degree in Industrial Engineering, a Master of Science Degree in Systems
Engineering, and a Ph.D. in Urban Planning and Policy.

GEOFF SUNDSTROM, Director of Public Relations, joined the Department in December 2010 as
Deputy Director of Public Relations. He was promoted to Director in September 2011. Mr. Sundstrom has
a decades’ long career in transportation-related media and public relations, most recently serving as Director

3-
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of Public Relations for the national office of AAA in Heathrow, Florida. During 21 years with the
52 million-member AAA, Mr. Sundstrom was responsible for business line publicity and served as the lead
spokesman to national print and broadcast media on a wide variety of consumer issues. Previous to joining
the AAA, he was Washington, D.C.-based transportation journalist for Automotive News magazine and the
New York Journal of Commerce. He is a recipient of the Public Relations Society of America’s Silver
Anvil Award for achievement in public relations and holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Journalism from
Northern Arizona University in Flagstaff.

JOSEPH WRIGHT became Director of Maintenance and Operations in November 2009. During his
over thirty-year career with the Department, he has served in each of the State’s three counties where he
most recently served as an Assistant Director for Maintenance and Operations’ South District, since June of
2002, supervising more than 200 employees with primary responsibility for maintaining roads and bridges in
Sussex County. He also has experience administering multiple construction activities, with 17 years in the
Construction Offices in New Castle County. Along with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil Engineering
from the University of Delaware, Joe holds his Professional Engineer license in the State. He is also a
member and Past President of the American Society of Highway Engineers

Role of the State
General

The annual budgets for capital and operating expenditures of the Department (including the
Authority) are subject to review and approval by the State. The Act provides that if the Authority's proposed
annual operating budget is not approved by July 1 for the year the budget is submitted, the budget as
submitted is deemed to have been adopted by the Authority until such time as the annual budget is approved
by the State. The Act also provides that any obligations incurred by the Authority after July 1 pursuant to an
annual operating budget so adopted by the Authority and prior to its approval by the State are binding, even
if the annual operating budget is subsequently revised by the State.

The Act provides that, in approving the annual operating budget of the Authority, the State (1) may
not approve an amount for debt service or for debt service reserve purposes which is less than the amount
required to be provided pursuant to any resolution or trust indenture of the Authority pursuant to which any
bonds are issued and (2) may not approve an amount for operating expenses of the Delaware Turnpike that
is less than the amount incurred for the preceding fiscal year of the Authority plus an inflation factor based
on the U.S. Consumer Price Index, unless the Authority requests a lesser amount. Although the State has
the right to approve the Authority's annual budget, THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY DOES NOT HAVE TO
APPROVE THE TOLLS AND OTHER CHARGES THE AUTHORITY IMPOSES FOR USE OF THE
DELAWARE TURNPIKE.

Each year the Department revises a six-year Capital Transportation Program for the State's
transportation system. The first year of the Capital Transportation Program is reflected in the Department's
annual capital budget (which includes Delaware Transit Corporation’s annual capital budget) and is
submitted to the State for review and approval. This annual capital budget represents the Department's work
program. The Authority cannot undertake, or commit to, capital projects in excess of the amounts
specifically authorized by the State. See “TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL PROJECTS AND FINANCING
PLANS - Capital Improvements Planning and Budgeting.”

The issuance of Authority debt obligations is subject to (i) approval by the State's Bond Issuing
Officers and (ii) one provision of the State's statutory debt limitations designed to control total indebtedness
of the State and the Authority. The applicable debt limitation (the “15% Test”) states that no “tax-supported
debt obligation” of the State and no “Transportation Trust Fund debt obligation” of the Authority may be
incurred if the aggregate maximum annual payments on all such outstanding obligations (plus certain lease
obligations) will exceed 15% of the estimated aggregate General Fund revenue from all sources, plus
Transportation Trust Fund revenue. Estimated revenue figures are for the fiscal year following the fiscal
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year in which such obligation is incurred, as determined by the most recent projections made by the
Delaware Economic and Financial Advisory Council. Such estimated revenue figures are adjusted, if
appropriate, by the fiscal impact of subsequently enacted legislation as certified by the Secretary of Finance.
After the issuance of the 2012 Bonds, the applicable debt service under the 15% Test will be approximately
7.86% of the applicable revenue in fiscal 2013. The State and the Authority expect that the Bonds projected
to be issued in the current Capital Transportation Program can be issued within the limits of the 15% Test.

Delaware Economic and Financial Advisory Council

Delaware Economic and Financial Advisory Council (“DEFAC”) is a council comprised currently
of 34 government officials and private citizens from the business and financial communities appointed by
the Governor. DEFAC was established by Executive Order to provide to the General Assembly General
Fund revenue forecasts and Transportation Trust Fund revenue forecasts six times each fiscal year in
September, December, March, April, May and June for the current fiscal year and the succeeding two fiscal
years. A forecast for the current fiscal year and the succeeding four fiscal years is generated once each year,
not later than October 1. A seven-year forecast is generated for the Transportation Trust Fund. General
Fund and Transportation Trust Fund expenditure forecasts are generated for the current fiscal year in
September, December, March, April, May and June. These forecasts are used in the State budget process to
assist State compliance with the State's constitutional limits on spending and statutory debt limitations.

Cash Management Policy Board

The Cash Management Policy Board was created by State law to establish policies for and the
terms, conditions and other matters relating to, the investment of all money belonging to the State, including
funds in the Transportation Trust Fund (except money in any State pension fund and money held for
individuals under the State deferred compensation program). The Board is composed of nine members
including the Secretary of Finance, the Secretary of State, the State Treasurer, the Controller General
(serving ex officio), and five members from the private sector appointed by the Governor and confirmed by
the State Senate.

THE TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND
General

To facilitate the Authority's development of a unified transportation system in the State and to take
advantage of the Authority's broad financing powers, in 1987 the Transportation Trust Fund (the “TTF”)
was created by law. The TTF was created to consolidate and dedicate transportation related revenue to
transportation projects and to provide a flexible mechanism to handle increasing funding requirements over
time for all transportation projects in the State. The TTF is the State's financing vehicle for transportation
capital expenditures. Funding for such expenditures is derived from Bond proceeds, excess TTF revenue,
and cash balances.

In addition, the Trust Fund has assumed the responsibility for (1) the operating expenses of the
Authority (including the Delaware Transit Corporation), the Delaware Turnpike and the Route 1 Toll Road
and all of the other divisions of the Department and (2) debt service on general obligation bonds previously
sold by the State for transportation projects.

Initial Funding

The TTF was initially funded in fiscal 1988 with existing cash balances of $22.5 million, a special
one time appropriation from the General Fund of $27.8 million plus the dedication of revenue streams
(including investment earnings) then aggregating approximately $76.2 million per year. Since establishing
the TTF, the State has increased fee and tax rates for existing dedicated revenue streams and has assigned to
the TTF certain additional sources of transportation related revenue, as well as certain additional
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transportation related expenses. As a result, revenues to the TTF have increased substantially since fiscal

1988 and totaled $432.4 million in fiscal 2011.

year 2012.

**DRAFT**v2

Summary of Revenue Dedicated to the TTF

Revenues are estimated to reach $428.6 million in fiscal

The following table and chart summarize the revenue which is currently dedicated to the TTF, and

Pledged to the Bonds:
Motor Fuel Taxes
Delaware Turnpike Toll/Concession
Motor Vehicle Document Fees
Motor Vehicle Registration Fees
Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue
Investment Earnings

Total Pledged Revenue
Not Pledged to the Bonds:
Route 1 Toll Road Revenue
Non-pledged Miscellaneous Revenue
Total Non-Pledged Revenue

Total TTF Revenues

identify that revenue which is pledged to secure the Bonds:

Fiscal Year

2011

(in $ millions)

$113.8
115.9
68.3
47.2
27.5
3.6

$376.3

44.4
11.7
56.1
$432.4

(1) Net of refunds for fuel consumed for non-highway use ($0.1 million).

(2) Net of refunds to other states under the International Registration Plan ($0.04 million).

6]

@
3)

4

Percentage of
Total Fiscal 2011
Pledged Revenue

30.2%
30.8%
18.2%
12.5%
7.3%
1.0%

100.0%

(3) Net of refunds to other jurisdictions under the International Motor Fuel Tax Agreement ($0.2 million) and transfers to the

General Fund ($0.4 million).

(4) Traffic violation surcharge revenue, general fund transfers including motor vehicle dealer handling fee, motor vehicle
dealer annual licensing fee, development plan review fees, motor vehicle use tax on vehicle lease payments, real estate lease

fees, and property sales. Does not include General Fund contribution of $24 million.
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Sources of Pledged Revenue
Transportation Trust Fund - Fiscal 2011

Registration Fees,
12.5% Miscellaneous,
7.3%

Turnpike
Revenue, 30.8%

Interest, 1.0%

Motor Fuel Tax,
Document Fees, 30.2%
18.2%
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Uses of Funds in the Transportation Trust Fund

Funds in the TTF are applied to meet the funding requirements of the Agreement including debt
service on the Bonds, operating expenses of the Authority and the Department, debt service on existing State
general obligation bonds issued for transportation projects and the costs of capital projects of the Authority
and the Department.

The flow of funds to the TTF and under the Agreement is summarized in the following diagram:

Flow of Funds
Motor Fuel > Trustee

Taxes 1 Motor Fuel Taxes ¢

Document Fees
: Turnpike Revenue
G - Registration Fees Senior Debt Service
Revenic Miscellaneous Fees

Investment Eamings ¢
Future Revenues

Senior Debt Service
Reserve Fund

Route 1 Revenue

L3 Trust Fund

Document [ +
Fees A Junior Debt Service
Motor Vehicle ¢
Registration Fees [ Route 1 Revenue . Junior Debt Service
- Investment Motor Carrier Decal Fees Reserve Fund
Miscellaneous | Eamings Excess Pledged Revenue +
Transportation Revenues Other Non Pledged Revenue
Turnpike Operations
Motor Carrier Decal ¢
Fees mi
Y Stabilization Fund
Future Operations and
Revenue = Pay-As-You-Go *
Capital
Surplus

I

Sources and Uses of Funds for Fiscal Years 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011

The following summary of the results of the Sources and Uses of Funds are for fiscal years ended
June 30, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 (Audited financial statements for the fiscal years 2011 and 2012 are
included in APPENDIX A). The summary reflects the flow of funds required by the Agreement as
illustrated in the Flow of Funds diagram above.
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Summary Results
Fiscal Years Ended

(dollars in thousands)

Sources of Funds:

Existing Pledged Revenue
1-95 Tolls & Concessions (1)
Motor Fuel Tax Admin.(2)
DMV Fees
Interest Income
Total Pledged Revenue
Non-Pledged Revenues
SR 1 Tolls

Continuing General Fund Support

Violation revenue

DE Transit (Farebox, FTA, & Other)

Port of Wilmington - Refinancing

Other Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Non-Pledged Revenue
Total Revenue
Borrowing
TOTAL SOURCES
Uses of Funds:
Debt Service (3)
DTA Bonds & Notes
State G.O. Bonds
Debt Service

Operations
Department Operations
Grants Aid Act - GF support of DelDOT M&O

Delaware Transit Corp. Operations
Total Operations

State Capital Spending
TOTAL USES

Additional Senior Bonds Test
Additional Junior Bonds Test

O
2
3)

Includes motor carrier fees.

(@) There are no Junior Bonds Outstanding.

2008

2009

2010

2011

117,869
122,866
130,079

10,776

121,225
119,467
122,035

4,673

119,399
115,740
125,693

2,302

115,895
116,612
140,106

3,573

381,591

40,509
0

0
14,705
1,000
12,743

367,400

44,497
0
3,056
16,219
1,618
17,700

363,134

45,502
0

16,543
0
11,032

376,186

44,429
24,000

16,874
1628
11,794

68,957

450,548
47.100

497,648

118,493
753
119,246

129,877
0
85,859

83,090

450,490
226,336

676,826

121,495
796
122,291

137,801
0
87.772

73,077

436,211
0

436,211

120,713
742
121,455

145,055
0
90,069

98,725

474,911
102.909

577.820

123,103
720
123,823

141,817
0
90,400

215,736
227,561
562,543

3.52
20.35

225,573
223,524
571,388

3.34
19.76

Includes toll, concession and other revenue on the Delaware Turnpike.

235,124
170,337
526,916

2.99
N/A (4)

Based on the assumption that July 1 payments are made on the previous June 30.

232,217
127,486
483,526

3.03
N/A (4)
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REFUNDING PROGRAM
The Authority will use a portion of the proceeds of the 2012 Bonds to provide for the current and
advance refunding of the Senior Bonds identified below (the “Refunded Bonds™). The Refunded Bonds are

being refunded for debt service savings.

Senior Bonds Being Refunded

Maturities* Principal
Series (July 1) Amount (%) Call Date
2002B 2013 to 2022, inclusive 81,300,000.00 July 1, 2012
2003 2017, 2018, 2019, 2021, 2022, 2023 59,615,000.00 July 1, 2013
2004 2015 to 2024, inclusive 61,725,000.00 July 1,2014
2005 2017, 2018, 2022, 2023, 2024 48,055,000.00 July 1,2015

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The following table summarizes the estimated sources and uses of money which the Authority
estimates will be available to refund the Refunded Bonds and to pay costs of issuance of the 2012 Bonds.

Sources of Funds

Principal amount of 2012 Bonds.........ccccvevveveeriencieeieeieeeeseeeen, $222,870,000.00
Net Original Issue Premiume.........cccceeevieiiieiienienienienie e 42.290,885.65
Debt Service Reserve Funds — Refunded Bonds..............ooooenneenn. 2,880,536.19
Other Sources Of FUNAS ..........ccoveieiiiiiieieeeee e, 2.943.215.32
TOAL e $270,984,637.16
Uses of Funds

Escrow Deposit for Refunded Bonds........ccccccvvveviieviiieciienieeene. $270,163,203.29

Financing and Other Expenses
Underwriting diSCOUNL........c.eevvierierieerierreereeieeieeieesseesseesenenenes 167,999 .41
Other fiNancing EXPENSES .......couerveeruerierieniereenienieeeeneeseesresieeeens 653.434.46
TOtAL ..o $270,984,637.16

-10-
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DESCRIPTION OF THE 2012 BONDS

The 2012 Bonds are to be issued in the total aggregate principal amount of $222,870,000. The 2012
Bonds are dated and bear interest from their date of delivery payable commencing January 1, 2013, and
thereafter semi-annually on each January 1 and July 1 at the rate or rates per annum and shall mature, all as
set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement.

The 2012 Bonds will be payable as to principal upon presentation and surrender thereof to the
Trustee at the principal office of Wilmington Trust Company, Wilmington, Delaware. The 2012 Bonds will
be issued as fully registered bonds, and when issued, will be registered in the name of and held by Cede &
Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”). Purchases of beneficial interests in the 2012
Bonds will be made in book-entry form (without certificates) in the denomination of $5,000 or any whole
multiple thereof. Under certain limited circumstances described herein, the Authority may determine to
forego immobilization of the 2012 Bonds at DTC, or another securities depository, in which case, such
beneficial interests are expected to become exchangeable for one or more fully registered bonds of like
principal, series and maturity in the denomination of $5,000 or any whole multiple thereof.

So long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the registered owner of the 2012 Bonds, payments of
the principal of and interest on the 2012 Bonds are to be made by the Trustee directly to Cede & Co.
Distribution of such payments to DTC participants is the responsibility of DTC and disbursement of such
payments to owners of beneficial interests in the 2012 Bonds is the responsibility of the DTC participants.
See “BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM.”

Redemption
Optional Redemption

The 2012 Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2023 are subject to redemption, at the option of the
Authority, in whole or in part at any time on or after July 1, 2022, in any order of maturity selected by the
Authority and within a maturity by lot, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2012
Bonds to be redeemed plus interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date.

Notice of Redemption

The Agreement provides that at least 30 days but not more than 60 days before the redemption date
of any of the 2012 Bonds, the Trustee shall mail notice of such redemption to all owners of 2012 Bonds or
portions thereof to be redeemed at their addresses as they appear on the registration books held by the
Trustee. Each such notice will set forth the 2012 Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, the date for
such redemption, the redemption price to be paid, and if less than all of the 2012 Bonds will be called for
redemption and the maturities of the 2012 Bonds to be redeemed. So long as DTC is the registered owner of
the 2012 Bonds, this notice is required to be mailed by the Trustee to DTC only. Any failure of DTC to
mail such notice to any participant will not affect the validity of the redemption of the 2012 Bonds.

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS
Pledge and Assignment of Revenue and Funds

The Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from and secured by a pledge and
assignment of motor fuel tax revenue, motor vehicle document fees, motor vehicle registration fees, certain
miscellaneous transportation related fees (“Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue”), revenue of the
Delaware Turnpike, certain funds held by the Trustee under the Agreement and investment earnings on all
funds of the Authority, all as more fully described below (the “Pledged Revenue”™).

-11-
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Tax and Fee Revenue

The State has pledged and assigned to the TTF, for the use of the Authority, (i) all motor fuel tax
revenue imposed and collected by the State, (ii) all motor vehicle document fees imposed and collected by
the State, (iii) all motor vehicle registration fees imposed and collected by the State, (iv) the Pledged
Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue plus certain other miscellaneous transportation revenue and
reimbursement which have not been pledged as security for the Bonds and (v) certain escheat revenues,
which escheat revenues have not been pledged as security for the Bonds. Escheat revenues in the amount of
$10,000,000 were transferred to the TTF from fiscal 2000 until fiscal 2002, but were not transferred in fiscal
2003. Such escheat revenues were again transferred to the TTF in fiscal 2004, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2006.
Escheat revenues in the amount of $24,000,000 were transferred to the TTF in fiscal 2007. The scheduled
fiscal 2008, 2009 and 2010 transfers of escheat revenues to the TTF were suspended. These revenues were
used by the General Fund to help make up for revenue shortfalls during fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2009. Due to
continuing budget concerns, the General Assembly also did not make the scheduled transfer of escheat
revenues to the TTF in fiscal 2010. In fiscal 2011, the TTF received a General Fund appropriation of
$14,000,000. It was also legislated that additional transfers of up to $70,000,000 would be made to various
funds if the States escheat revenue receipts exceeded $424,000,000 during the fiscal year. Under this
legislation the second receipt of $10,000,000 was transferred to the TTF. In fiscal 2012, legislation
increased the TTF contribution to $40,000,000 and it is expected that $40,000,000 of escheat revenues will
be transferred to the TTF in the fiscal years subsequent to fiscal 2012; however, the Authority and the
Department emphasize that the appropriation of the escheat monies to the TTF each year is subject to the
discretion of the General Assembly, and when there are budget constraints, it is possible that the General
Assembly will suspend the appropriation of escheat revenues to the TTF in such years. See footnote (1) to
the Base Financial Plan — Capital table under “TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL PROJECTS AND
FINANCING PLANS — Current Financial Plan” herein. In the Agreement the Authority has, in turn,
pledged and assigned motor fuel tax revenue, motor vehicle document fees, motor vehicle registration fees,
investment earnings and the Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue to secure the Bonds. The
Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue and the Non-Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation
Revenue (hereinafter defined) are hereafter collectively referred to as the “Miscellaneous Transportation
Revenue”.

The State has covenanted in the Act that it will not repeal or reduce the motor fuel taxes, the motor
vehicle document fees, the motor vehicle registration fees or the fees constituting Pledged Miscellaneous
Transportation Revenue, which are pledged to secure the Bonds, below the levels in effect on the date of
issuance of the 2012 Bonds until such Bonds are paid or provision for their payment is made. The State,
however, has not authorized nor does it have any obligation to increase the rates of those taxes or fees to
generate revenue to meet debt service on the 2012 Bonds. The above covenant does not apply to the Non-
Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue, or other non-pledged revenue.

Delaware Turnpike Revenue

All revenue received by the Authority from the operation of the Delaware Turnpike (including toll
and concession revenue) is pledged by the Authority in the Agreement to secure the Bonds.

The Authority covenants in the Agreement that it will fix and revise from time to time, and charge
and collect charges, fares, fees, rentals and tolls for the use of the Delaware Turnpike and that it will not
reduce the tolls on the Delaware Turnpike below the level in effect on the date of issuance of the 2012
Bonds, except as provided in the Agreement. The Authority may increase tolls, reduce tolls and make
certain other adjustments or reclassifications of toll rates or establish special toll rates for the Delaware
Turnpike as provided in the Agreement.

-12-
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Bond Proceeds

All proceeds of Bonds which are deposited in the Capital Fund under the Agreement to be applied to
pay for improvements to the State's transportation system are pledged by the Authority in the Agreement to
secure the Bonds.

Debt Service Fund; Stabilization Fund

Under the Agreement there is established a Debt Service Fund and within that fund there is a
separate Principal and Interest Account, and Redemption Account, for the Senior Bonds and the Junior
Bonds. All funds held by the Trustee in such Senior Bonds accounts are pledged to secure only the Senior
Bonds, and all funds held by the Trustee in such Junior Bonds accounts are pledged to secure only the Junior
Bonds, all as hereinafter more fully described. See “Flow of Funds” and APPENDIX B, “Flow of Funds”
and “Events of Default and Remedies; Respective Rights of Senior and Junior Bondholders.” All funds held
by the Trustee in the Debt Service Stabilization Fund (the “Stabilization Fund”) are also pledged to secure
the Bonds. The Authority is required to fund the Stabilization Fund (in such amount as the Authority
determines at the time of the funding of the Stabilization Fund) if it determines that Test Revenue
(hereinafter defined) based on the applicable historical test for issuing additional Bonds (hereinafter
described) is less than 3.5 times the maximum Principal and Interest Requirements on Senior Bonds,
including any Senior Bonds proposed to be issued. In the event sufficient funds are not otherwise available
in the Debt Service Fund when required to pay debt service, the Trustee is required to draw upon the
Stabilization Fund to pay debt service, first on the Senior Bonds and next on the Junior Bonds. See
APPENDIX B, “Flow of Funds.”

Debt Service Reserve Fund

Under the Agreement there is established a Debt Service Reserve Fund and within that fund there is
a separate Debt Service Reserve Account for the Senior Bonds and the Junior Bonds. All funds held by the
Trustee in the Debt Service Reserve Fund are pledged to secure the Senior Bonds and the Junior Bonds, as
the case may be, as hereinafter more fully described. If there are insufficient funds otherwise available in
the Senior Bonds or Junior Bonds debt service account, or in the Stabilization Fund, as applicable, when
required to pay debt service on the Bonds, the Trustee is required to draw on the applicable Debt Service
Reserve Account to make up the deficiency. The Authority is required to maintain funds in the Debt Service
Reserve Fund at least equal to the Senior and Junior Bonds Debt Service Reserve Account Requirements.

The Debt Service Reserve Account Requirements with respect to the Senior and Junior Bonds are
one half of the maximum Principal and Interest Requirements with respect to Senior and Junior Bonds,
respectively. The Senior Bonds Debt Service Reserve Account Requirement is subject to increase as
described below.

Two months prior to each July 1 (as of a date during such two-month period), the Authority must
prepare the certificate required to be prepared in connection with the issuance of additional Bonds. In the
event that the certificate shows that Test Revenues do not cover maximum Principal and Interest
Requirements of the Senior Bonds Outstanding by 2.00 times, then the Authority will file the certificate with
the Trustee and (i) the Senior Bonds Debt Service Reserve Account Requirement shall become an amount
equal to the maximum Principal and Interest Requirements on Senior Bonds Outstanding and (ii) the
Authority shall commence to make deposits to the Senior Bonds Debt Service Reserve Account on at least
an equal monthly basis to fund fully the Senior Bonds Debt Service Reserve Account Requirement on or by
the second anniversary of the date of calculation. On any subsequent July 1, if such coverage exceeds 2.25
times, the Senior Bonds Debt Service Reserve Account Requirement may be reduced to an amount equal to
one-half maximum Principal and Interest Requirements on Senior Bonds Outstanding, subject to increase as
provided above.

13-
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Two months prior to each October 1 (as of a date during such two-month period) unless the
Authority has filed with the Trustee the certificate described above during the two-month period prior to the
next preceding July 1, the Authority shall prepare such certificate. In the event that the certificate shows
that Test Revenues do not cover maximum Principal and Interest Requirements of the Senior Bonds
Outstanding by 2.00 times, then the Authority will file the certificate with the Trustee and (i) the Senior
Bonds Debt Service Reserve Account Requirement shall become an amount equal to the maximum Principal
and Interest Requirements on Senior Bonds Outstanding and (ii) the Authority shall commence to make
deposits to the Senior Bonds Debt Service Reserve Account on at least an equal monthly basis to fund fully
the Senior Bonds Debt Service Reserve Account Requirement on or by the second anniversary of the date of
calculation. On any subsequent July 1, if such coverage exceeds 2.25 times, the Senior Bonds Debt Service
Reserve Account Requirement may be reduced to an amount equal to one-half maximum Principal and
Interest Requirements on Senior Bonds Outstanding, subject to increase as provided above. The foregoing
certificate shall also be filed by the Authority with the Trustee at the time of issuance of additional Bonds.

The Debt Service Reserve Account Requirements may be satisfied by the acquisition of a Credit
Facility as provided in the Agreement. See APPENDIX B, “Additional Bonds; Debt Service Reserve
Fund”.

Investment Earnings

All investment earnings on the Revenue Fund, the Capital Fund, the Debt Service Fund, the
Stabilization Fund and the Debt Service Reserve Fund, net of any amounts required to be paid to the Internal
Revenue Service in order to preserve the tax-exempt status of the 2012 Bonds, are to be retained in or
deposited by the Trustee in the Revenue Fund and are pledged by the Authority in the Agreement to secure
the 2012 Bonds. The Authority is also required to cause the investment earnings on all of its other funds not
held by the Trustee, including particularly the TTF, to be paid to the Trustee for deposit in the Revenue
Fund at least once a year (the “TTF Investment Earnings”). These investment earnings are also pledged by
the Authority in the Agreement to secure the Bonds; however, such earnings shall not be treated as
Additional Revenue for purposes of satisfying the coverage test which must be met as a condition of issuing
additional bonds in the Agreement (See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Additional Senior Bonds” and
“SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Additional Junior Bonds™).

Non-Pledged Revenue

The Authority has not pledged to secure the Bonds (i) the toll revenue from the Route 1 Toll Road
(the “Route 1 Toll Revenue”), (ii) the federal subsidy payments the Authority receives from bonds issued as
“Build America Bonds,” and (iii) certain other miscellaneous transportation revenue and reimbursements
which includes various amounts which may not be transferred in future fiscal years. Escheat revenues in the
amount of $10,000,000 were transferred to the TTF from fiscal 2000 until fiscal 2002, but were not
transferred in fiscal 2003. Such escheat revenue was again transferred to the TTF in fiscal 2004, fiscal 2005
and fiscal 2006. Escheat revenue in the amount of $24,000,000 was transferred to the TTF in fiscal 2007.
The scheduled fiscal 2008, 2009 and 2010 transfers of escheat revenues to the TTF were suspended. These
revenues were used by the General Fund to help make up for revenue shortfalls during fiscal 2008 and fiscal
2009. Due to continuing budget concerns, the General Assembly also did not make the scheduled transfer of
escheat revenues to the TTF in fiscal 2010. In fiscal 2011 the TTF received a General Fund appropriation of
$14,000,000. It was also legislated that additional transfers of up to $70,000,000 would be made to various
funds if the States escheat revenue receipts exceeded $424,000,000 during the fiscal year. Under this
legislation the second receipt of $10,000,000 was transferred to the TTF. In fiscal 2012, legislation
increased the TTF contribution to $40,000,000 and it is expected that $40,000,000 of escheat revenues will
be transferred to the TTF in the fiscal years subsequent to fiscal 2012; however, the Authority and the
Department emphasize that the appropriation of the escheat monies to the TTF each year is subject to the
discretion of the General Assembly, and when there are budget constraints, it is possible that the General
Assembly will suspend the appropriation of escheat revenues to the TTF in such years. See footnote (1) to
the Base Financial Plan — Capital table under “TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL PROJECTS AND
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FINANCING PLANS - Current Financial Plan” herein. The revenue described in clause (ii) above,
together with any escheat revenues, are hereinafter sometimes referred to as “Non-Pledged Miscellaneous
Transportation Revenues”. Certain components of the Non-Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue
are not projected to be recurring in future fiscal years. See “SOURCES OF REVENUE FOR THE TRUST
FUND -- Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue - Non-Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenues”
for a discussion of revenue sources transferred to the TTF but which have not been pledged by the Authority
to secure the Bonds.

Flow of Funds

The State is required to transfer all motor fuel tax revenue, motor vehicle document fees, motor
vehicle registration fees and Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue to the TTF from where such revenue is
required to be immediately transferred to the Trustee for deposit in the Revenue Fund to the extent that such
revenues constitute “Revenues and Receipts of the Authority”. The Agreement requires the Authority to
collect tolls and other charges, fares, fees, and concessions for use of the Delaware Turnpike and its
facilities and to deposit this revenue, upon receipt, in the Revenue Fund. On or before the fifteenth day of
each month, the Trustee is required under the Agreement to withdraw all funds from the Revenue Fund on
deposit on the tenth day of that month and to deposit these funds in the following order of priority:

(1) to fund debt service and debt service reserve requirements with respect to
all Senior Bonds;

(i1) to fund debt service and debt service reserve requirements with respect to
all Junior Bonds;

(iii)  to pay Operating Expenses of the Delaware Turnpike;
(iv) to make up any deficiency in the Operating Reserve Fund;
V) to make up any deficiency in the Stabilization Fund; and

(vi)  the remainder to be transferred to the TTF, free of the lien of the
Agreement, subject to an obligation to transfer investment income on the
TTF, if any, to the Revenue Fund.

See APPENDIX B, “Flow of Funds” and the flow of funds diagram under “THE
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND -- Uses of Funds in the Transportation Trust Fund”.

Senior Lien for Senior Bonds

The lien of the Junior Bonds against the Pledged Revenue, with certain limited exceptions, is
subordinate to the lien of the Senior Bonds. If there is an event of default resulting from a failure in
payment of debt service on the Senior Bonds or from an insolvency of the Authority or if there is an event of
default which the Trustee attempts to remedy by acceleration, no payment of debt service may be made on
the Junior Bonds except from certain Junior Bonds Priority Funds -- funds already on deposit in the Junior
Bonds Principal and Interest Account, the Junior Bonds Redemption Account (but not any funds held for
optional redemption) or the Junior Bonds Debt Service Reserve Account -- until the default with respect to
the Senior Bonds is cured.

Credit of the State Not Pledged; Certain Covenants of the State
THE BONDS ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY SECURED ONLY

BY THE PLEDGED REVENUE OF THE AUTHORITY AS DESCRIBED ABOVE UNDER
“PLEDGE AND ASSIGNMENT OF REVENUE AND FUNDS”. THE BONDS DO NOT
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CONSTITUTE A DEBT OF THE STATE OR OF ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF,
NOR A PLEDGE OF THE GENERAL TAXING POWER OR THE FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE
STATE OR OF ANY SUCH POLITICAL SUBDIVISION.

The State has covenanted in the Act that it will not repeal or reduce the motor fuel taxes, the motor
vehicle document fees, the motor vehicle registration fees or the fees constituting Pledged Miscellaneous
Transportation Revenue, which are pledged to secure the Bonds, below the levels in effect on the date of
issuance of the 2012 Bonds until such Bonds are paid or provision for their payment is made. The State has
not, however, authorized nor does it have any obligation to increase the rates of those taxes or fees to
generate revenue to meet debt service on the 2012 Bonds.

The State has also covenanted in the Act that it will not (i) limit or alter the rights or powers vested
in the Authority by the Act in any way that would jeopardize the interest of the holders of the Bonds or
inhibit or prevent performance or fulfillment by the Authority of the terms of any agreement made with the
holders or (ii) prevent the Authority from obtaining revenue which, together with other available funds, shall
be sufficient to meet all expenses of the Authority and fulfill the terms of any agreement made with the
holders of Bonds and all costs and expenses in connection with any action or proceedings by or on behalf of
the holders, or (iii) prevent the Authority from receiving payment of funds as provided in any agreement,
until the Bonds together with interest and premium, if any, thereon are fully met and discharged or provided
for.

The State has also covenanted in the Act that it will not limit or restrict the rights granted to the
Authority by the Act to construct, reconstruct, improve, extend, alter, modernize, repair, operate and
maintain any transportation facilities, or to establish and collect such charges, fares, fees, rates, rentals and
tolls as may be convenient or necessary to produce sufficient revenue to meet the expenses of maintenance
and operation thereof and to fulfill the terms of any agreements made with the holders of bonds authorized
by the Act or in any way impair the rights or remedies of the holders of such bonds until all of such bonds
are fully paid or discharged.

Additional Senior Bonds

The Agreement and the Act permit the Authority to issue additional Senior Bonds (or to convert
outstanding Junior Bonds to Senior Bonds) secured on a parity with the other Senior Bonds issued and
outstanding under the Agreement for any purpose permitted under the Act, provided that there is satisfied
the Senior Bonds Historical Test (described in (i)(A) below) and the Junior Bonds Historical Test (described
in (i)(B) below) or the Senior Bonds Alternate Test (described in (ii)(A) below) and the Junior Bonds
Alternate Test (described in (ii)(B) below).

(i)(A) The Senior Bonds Historical Test is satisfied if the aggregate amount of motor fuel tax
revenue, motor vehicle document fees, motor vehicle registration fees, revenue from the Delaware Turnpike,
Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue and Additional Revenue pledged to secure the Bonds
(excluding TTF Investment Earnings) (the “Test Revenue”) for any 12 consecutive month period of the
preceding 15 months ending not later than three months prior to the date of the additional Senior Bonds,
which date shall not be more than 90 days prior to the date of issuance of the additional Senior Bonds
(adjusted to reflect adjustments in the tax rates, fees and tolls as if such adjustments had been in effect for
the entire period) equals or exceeds 2.00 times the maximum Principal and Interest Requirements for all
Senior Bonds, including the Senior Bonds proposed to be issued.

(B) The Junior Bonds Historical Test is satisfied if the aggregate amount of Test Revenue,
calculated in the same manner and for the same 12 month period as in (i)(A) above, reduced by the
maximum Principal and Interest Requirements for the Senior Bonds, equals or exceeds 3.0 times the
maximum Principal and Interest Requirements for all Junior Bonds, including the Junior Bonds proposed to
be issued.
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(i1)(A) The Senior Bonds Alternate Test is satisfied if estimated Test Revenue (assuming for each
fiscal year described below, that Test Revenue is equal to the aggregate amount of Test Revenue for the
same 12 month period as in (i)(A) above as adjusted in subsequent fiscal years for any increase in tolls,
taxes or fees from the date such increase is to be in effect) (I) for the current fiscal year and each of the
following four fiscal years equals or exceeds 2.00 times the Principal and Interest Requirements for all
Senior Bonds Outstanding during each such year and (II) for the fifth following fiscal year equals or exceeds
2.00 times the maximum Principal and Interest Requirements for all Senior Bonds for that year or any
subsequent fiscal year.

(B) The Junior Bonds Alternate Test is satisfied if estimated Test Revenue (assuming for each
fiscal year described below, that Test Revenue is equal to the aggregate amount of Test Revenue for the
same 12 month period as in (i)(A) above as adjusted in subsequent fiscal years for any increase in tolls,
taxes or fees from the date such increase is to be in effect), less (x) for the current and each of the next four
fiscal years, the Principal and Interest Requirements on the Senior Bonds for each such year, and (y) for the
fifth following fiscal year, the maximum Principal and Interest Requirements on the Senior Bonds for that
year or any subsequent fiscal year, (I) for the current fiscal year and each of the following four fiscal years
equals or exceeds 3.0 times the Principal and Interest Requirements for all Junior Bonds Outstanding during
each such year and (II) for the fifth following fiscal year equals or exceeds 3.0 times the maximum Principal
and Interest Requirements for all Junior Bonds for that year or any subsequent fiscal year.

The Authority may also issue additional Senior Bonds to refund any Senior Bonds, without meeting
the coverage tests described above, if the maximum Principal and Interest Requirements for the refunding
bonds is less than the maximum Principal and Interest Requirements for the Bonds to be refunded.

Additional Junior Bonds

The Agreement and the Act permit the Authority to issue additional Junior Bonds secured on a
parity with all other Junior Bonds issued and outstanding under the Agreement for any purpose permitted
under the Act, provided that either the Junior Bonds Historical Test or the Junior Bonds Alternate Test, as
described above, is satisfied.

The Authority may also issue additional Junior Bonds to refund any Junior Bonds or Senior Bonds,
without meeting the coverage tests described above, if the maximum Principal and Interest Requirements for
the refunding bonds are less than the maximum Principal and Interest Requirements for the Bonds to be
refunded.

Additional Revenue Considered in Additional Bonds Tests

For the purposes of the additional bonds coverage tests described above, Additional Revenue
(excluding the TTF Investment Earnings) may be included and taken into account as Test Revenue provided
that (1) a Supplemental Agreement is duly adopted by the Authority providing for the pledge of such
Additional Revenue under the Agreement for the benefit of the holders of Bonds, (2) the Authority receives
a written opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that such pledge is valid and binding on
the Authority and any pledge or assignment of such additional revenue to the Authority by the State is valid,
(3) the State or the Authority, as the case may be, shall have covenanted not to repeal, reduce or adversely
alter such Additional Revenue below rates in effect at the time of such pledge and assignment, (4) all
approvals and authorizations necessary to effect such pledge and assignment have been obtained and (5) the
Supplemental Agreement evidencing the pledge of Additional Revenues shall incorporate all of the
covenants, terms and conditions contained in the Agreement.

Subordinate Indebtedness

Under the Agreement, the Authority may also issue additional obligations secured by a lien on the
Pledged Revenue which is subordinate to the lien of the Senior Bonds and the Junior Bonds. Such
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obligations may be issued without regard to any additional bonds debt service coverage test. The rights of
holders of any Subordinate Indebtedness will be limited, however, as follows: all principal and interest on
all Senior and Junior Bonds must be paid before any payment of debt service may be made on any
Subordinate Indebtedness if any of the following occur (i) insolvency, bankruptcy, receivership or any
similar proceeding with respect to the Authority or its property; (ii) the acceleration of principal and interest
on the Subordinate Indebtedness; (iii) an Event of Default with respect to Senior or Junior Bonds resulting in
acceleration of principal of and interest on the Senior Bonds and/or the Junior Bonds; or (iv) an Event of
Default resulting from the failure in payment of Principal and Interest Requirements on any Bond. An event
of default with respect to Subordinate Indebtedness shall not in itself create the right to declare an Event of
Default with respect to the Senior Bonds or the Junior Bonds.

SOURCES OF REVENUE FOR THE TRUST FUND
General

The TTF receives the motor fuel taxes, the Delaware Turnpike toll and concession revenue, Route 1
Toll Revenue, the motor vehicle document fee revenue, the motor vehicle registration fee revenue,
Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue and the interest earnings on the TTF's balances. All of the revenue
derived from these sources, except the Route 1 Toll Revenue and the Non-Pledged Miscellaneous
Transportation Revenue (which includes, among others, the escheat revenues), is pledged to secure the
Bonds.

The Delaware Economic and Financial Advisory Council (“DEFAC”) forecasts revenue of the TTF
applying various assumptions and forecasts provided to it by the Department. An update letter, dated
September 12, 2011, from Stantec Consulting Services Inc. (the “Transportation Consultant”), is provided as
an update to the previous report of SYSTRAmobility, entitled “Traffic and Revenue Report for the
Delaware Turnpike and the Route 1 Toll Road”, dated July 14, 2010. The Transportation Consultant’s
projections are revised (as so revised, the “Transportation Consultant’s Update Letter”), is attached hereto as
APPENDIX E. The forecasts of toll and concession revenue for the Delaware Turnpike and the Route 1
Toll Road contained herein reflect the DEFAC forecasts.

Motor Fuel Tax Revenue
General

Motor fuel tax revenue is derived from taxes imposed by the State on gasoline and special fuels.
This revenue totaled $113.8 million (net of refunds) in fiscal 2011. Motor fuel tax revenue provided 30.2%
of the revenue pledged to secure the Bonds in fiscal 2011 and is the second largest component of such
pledged revenue.

The term “gasoline” includes all products commonly or commercially known as gasoline but does
not include liquefied gases. The term “special fuel” means all combustible gases and liquids, except
gasoline, suitable for the generation of power for propulsion of motor vehicles. Gasoline taxes are payable
by licensed distributors and special fuel taxes are remitted by licensed special fuel suppliers, users and
dealers based on the sale or use of special fuels. Distributors, licensed special fuel users, dealers and
suppliers are required to file tax reports monthly and remit the taxes due for the preceding month. Failure to
file reports or remit taxes subjects the distributor, dealer, user or supplier to monetary penalties plus civil or
criminal proceedings. Exemptions from the motor fuel tax are provided to the United States or any
government agencies thereof and to the State and its political subdivisions, among other entities.

Motor fuel taxes were imposed at the rate of 16 cents per gallon for gasoline and special fuels for
the period from September 1, 1987 to December 31, 1990. On January 1, 1991 the motor fuel tax increased
to 19 cents per gallon. In June, 1993, the General Assembly enacted increases in both the gasoline and
special fuels tax rates as follows: (1) the gasoline tax rate increased to 22 cents per gallon on September 1,
1993 and to 23 cents per gallon on January 1, 1995; and (2) the special fuels tax rate increased to 22 cents
per gallon on January 1, 1995.
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Historical Summary of Gallonage and Revenue from Motor Fuel Taxation

The following table summarizes certain historical information pertaining to motor fuel taxes and
motor fuel usage in the State.

History of Gallonage and Revenue from Motor Fuel Taxes
(dollars and gallonage in millions; percent change
calculated from unrounded data)

Gallonage Change Revenue Change

1981 312.4 - 27.7 -
1982 313.0 02 % 335 @ 209 %
1983 323.9 35 353 54
1984 347.8 7.4 38.0 7.7
1985 361.5 3.9 394 3.7
1986 365.6 1.1 40.2 2.0
1987 3742 2.4 457 @ 13.7
1988 386.4 33 592 @ 29.5
1989 392.5 1.6 62.6 5.7
1990 395.8 0.8 63.4 1.3
1991 383.9 (3.0) 66.0 © 4.1
1992 382.8 (0.3) 72.5 9.9
1993 399.7 4.4 75.6 4.3
1994 404.8 1.3 847 © 12.0
1995 415.5 2.6 917 @ 8.3
1996 412.7 0.7) 94.1 26 @
1997 417.2 1.1 95.1 1.1
1998 433.8 4.0 98.5 3.6
1999 451.9 4.1 102.5 4.0
2000 455.7 0.8 103.9 1.4
2001 438.8 (3.7) 98.9 4.8)
2002 469.6 7.0 107.7 8.9
2003 474.2 1.0 107.3 0.4)
2004 485.7 2.4 112.4 4.8
2005 499.2 2.8 113.7 1.1
2006 516.2 34 120.1 5.7
2007 514.6 (0.3) 117.5 2.2)
2008 511.4 (0.6) 117.7 0.2
2009 498.1 (2.6) 114.6 (2.6)
2010 494.5 (0.7) 112.9 (1.5)
2011 498.1 0.7 113.8 0.8

(1) Net of refunds for non-highway use.

2) Rate increased from 9 to 11 cents per gallon on August 1, 1981.

3) Rate increased from 11 to 13 cents per gallon on October 1, 1986.

4 Rate increased from 13 to 16 cents per gallon on September 1, 1987.

%) Rate increased from 16 to 19 cents per gallon for gasoline on January 1, 1991.

(6) Rate increased from 19 cents to 22 cents per gallon for gasoline on September 1, 1993.

(7 Rate increased from 22 cents to 23 cents per gallon for gasoline and from 19 to 22 cents per gallon for special fuels on

January 1, 1995.
8) Reflects full year impact of fiscal 1995 rate increase.
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The following graph plots the taxable motor fuel consumed in the State from fiscal 1981 through
fiscal 2011.

Motor Fuel Consumption
1981-2011

(in millions of gallons)
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Motor Fuel Consumption

Motor fuel consumption is affected by various factors, including population growth, stages of the
business cycle, cost and availability of fuel, the requirements of the Federal Energy Act and the Federal
Clean Air Act Amendments of 1991 and the fuel efficiency of the vehicle fleet. Historically, growth in
consumption of motor fuel in Delaware has exceeded national and regional averages due in large part to a
stronger local economy. Declines have occurred during economic downturns and during periods of rapidly
rising fuel costs.

During the thirty-one year period from fiscal 1981 through fiscal 2011, motor fuel consumption has
risen from a low of 312.4 million gallons during the fiscal 1981 recessionary period to an all time high of
516.2 million gallons during fiscal 2006. The average percentage growth during this time period was 1.5%.

Special fuel consumption has doubled since fiscal 1980 primarily because of the increased use of

diesel engines. Special fuel's percentage of total consumption has increased from 9.2% in fiscal 1980 to
12.4% in fiscal 2011.
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Projections of Gallonage and Revenue from Motor Fuel Taxes

Based on the historical data regarding motor fuel consumption, current economic conditions and
some of the factors referenced above, DEFAC has provided projections of fuel revenues through fiscal 2018.
An important factor which will affect future motor fuel consumption and revenues, both nationally and in
Delaware, is the shift in consumer purchasing toward smaller more fuel-efficient vehicles. Increases in
vehicle fuel efficiency will also impact consumption. New vehicles entering the fleet have increased the
average number of gallons for all vehicles and future changes in vehicle technology may affect gasoline
consumption.

The forecasted motor fuel consumption and revenue from motor fuel taxation, assumes the current
and approved rate structure of $.23 per gallon for gasoline and $.22 per gallon for special fuels.

Projections of Gallonage and Revenue from Motor Fuel Taxes"

(dollars and gallonage in millions)

Fiscal Percent Percent
Year Gallonage Change Revenue” Change
2012 483.2 (3.0%)® $110.4 (3.0%)?
2013 492.8 2.0% $112.7 2.1%
2014 502.7 2.0% $115.0 2.0%
2015 512.7 2.0% $117.4 2.1%
2016 523.0 2.0% $119.8 2.0%
2017 5334 2.0% $122.3 2.1%
2018 544.1 2.0% $124.8 2.0%
(1 Projections provided by DEFAC from its March 19, 2012 meeting.
2) Revenue net of refunds for non-highway use.
3) Percent change from fiscal 2011 actual.

Toll Revenue
Delaware Turnpike Revenue

General. The toll and concession revenue of the Delaware Turnpike generated the largest source of
revenue to the TTF: $115.9 million in fiscal 2011 or 30.8% of the revenue pledged to secure the Bonds. Of
the total toll and concession revenue in fiscal 2011, toll revenue comprised 98.5% and concession revenue
comprised 1.5%.

Electronic Tolls. In 1998, the Department joined a consortium of several transportation agencies
from New Jersey and New York (the “Consortium”) for the purpose of installing an electronic toll collection
system (“E-Z Pass System”) on the toll roads and bridges operated by the members of the Consortium.
Pursuant to a Contract (the “Vendor Contract”), dated March 10, 1998, between The New Jersey Turnpike
Authority, as the designated representative of the Consortium, and Adesta Communications (formerly MFS
Network Technologies, Inc.) (the “Vendor”), the Department completed the installation of the E-Z Pass
System on the Route 1 Toll Road and the Delaware Turnpike (which became operational on the Delaware
Turnpike in November 1998, the southern section of the Route 1 Toll Road in April 1999 and the northern
section in November 1999). All tolls, due to the Authority, paid by the users of the E-Z Pass System in
Delaware are promptly being remitted to Delaware. Under the Vendor Contract, the Department has a
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contingent liability for a share of various costs to the extent that such costs are not covered by the
anticipated revenues. The Department prepaid its entire liability in fiscal 2007.

For a variety of reasons, the Department determined to separate from the Consortium. In connection
with that decision, the Department entered into an agreement in late March 2003 with the New Jersey
Turnpike Authority, pursuant to which the Department received certain one-time payments totaling
$7.6 million and a further $1 million in work effort required to complete a Fiber Optic network for the
State’s E-Z Pass System.

In connection with the decision to separate from the Consortium, the Department issued a Request
for Proposals and subsequently entered into an Agreement with TransCore for the build-out and operation of
the Department’s new stand-alone E-Z Pass Customer Service Center and Violations Processing Center.
The Center was completed and made operational in October 2003.

The implementation of the E-Z Pass System occurred in stages. The implementation of E-Z Pass
coincided with the increase in tolls at the Delaware Turnpike in January 1999. Implementation on the
southern section of State Route 1 occurred in April 1999 and implementation in the northern section
occurred with the opening of the tolls at Biddles Corner, southern New Castle County, in November 1999.

The E-Z Pass System has increased the Authority’s ability to track traffic and transactions at the toll
barriers and has aided in the electronic transfer of funds to TTF accounts. It has also increased the
Authority’s enforcement of violations for non-payment of tolls.

Delaware's E-Z Pass utilization rates have increased as expected. The Delaware Turnpike has a
utilization rate of 59.9%, while the rate on State Route 1 was 67.1% for fiscal 2011. These rates will
continue to increase as neighboring toll facilities join the E-Z Pass network. The Delaware River and Bay
Authority (operator of the Delaware Memorial Bridge), started operating in the E-Z Pass network in July
2001. Delaware's toll roads are now connected to E-Z Pass participants to the north and the south, which
will lead to further increases in utilization.

Description of Delaware Turnpike. The Delaware Turnpike comprises 11.3 miles of the nation's
Interstate 95, which extends along the east coast from Maine to Florida. To the southwest, the Delaware
Turnpike connects directly to the Maryland Turnpike, a similar toll facility extending southward to
Baltimore.

The easterly terminus of the Delaware Turnpike is at Delaware Route 141 where the Delaware
Turnpike meets the following three non-toll sections of the State's interstate road system: Interstate 95
which extends north to Wilmington, Delaware and into Pennsylvania; Interstate 495 which bypasses
Wilmington to the east and rejoins 1-95 at the Delaware/Pennsylvania state line; and Interstate 295 which
connects with U.S. Routes 13, 40 and 301 immediately to the east, and continues across the Delaware
Memorial Bridge, connecting with the New Jersey Turnpike and New Jersey 1-295.

Most of the Delaware Turnpike consists of four twelve-foot wide lanes in each direction. There are
four interchanges to serve communities along the route. A main barrier toll plaza consisting of 18 lanes
(7 cash lanes and 2 high speed E-Z Pass lanes in each direction), the only toll collection point on the
Delaware Turnpike, is located near the Maryland state line.

The Authority owns restaurants and one service station which, through contracts with
concessionaires, provide additional revenue for the Delaware Turnpike. The concession facilities are
located approximately midway on the Delaware Turnpike, between the north and southbound lanes.

The Delaware Turnpike restaurants were renovated in 1988 and are operated by the HMS Host

Corporation pursuant to a twenty-year contract which extended through June 2008, but which remained in
force through carryover provisions until the plaza closed down for construction in September 2009. In fiscal
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2009, concession revenue to the Delaware Turnpike totaled $2.4 million. One service station was operated
by Exxon Corporation under a ten-year contract that expired during fiscal year 2008. The station was closed
January 15, 2008. The remaining service station is operated by Sunoco, Inc. under a ten-year contract that
expired in October 2008, but which remained in force through carryover provisions until the plaza closed
down for construction in September 2009. A new contract was negotiated and executed in July 2008 for the
design, finance, construction, operation, and maintenance of a new welcome center and service plaza. The
new facility features a 47,000 square foot facility and a new service station with high-speed diesel pumps
and a 24-hour convenience store. The $35 million complex was financed entirely with private funding by
the operator. The contract also requires the operator to spend, at a minimum, an additional $21 million in
capital improvements over the 35-year lease term. The old plaza closed on September 8, 2009, and the new
plaza opened on June 24, 2010. To makeup for lost revenue during the closure, temporary rent payment
were made each month during the closure ($170,000/month). A new revenue sharing agreement was also
negotiated between the operator and the Department. The service plaza is now fully operational.

Historic Traffic and Toll Summary. The average annual growth of vehicle trips since fiscal 1980
has been 2.3%. During fiscal 2011, passenger traffic decreased 4.40% and commercial traffic was down
3.15%. The decrease in commercial traffic can be attributed to the continued poor economic conditions in
the region and the construction on the roadway. For most of fiscal year 2011, the roadway was under
construction, primarily due to the high-speed E-Z Pass project. Traffic was also hindered by weather events
during fiscal year 2011.

The following table summarizes the recorded vehicle trips through the Delaware Turnpike toll
barrier and the revenue derived from tolls and concessions from fiscal 1981 through fiscal 2011.

Most Recent Toll Increase (Fiscal 2008). With input from the General Assembly and the
Administration, the Authority evaluated the current toll structure and found that amending the current
structure for the Delaware Turnpike would be in the best interest of the Authority. Effective October 1,
2007, all vehicle class tolls increased by $1.00 and the discounts offered to commercial E-Z Pass customers
during the hours of 10 p.m. to 6 a.m. was discontinued.

Recent Upgrades to the Turnpike. In fiscal 2011 the high speed E-Z Pass lane project was
completed, adding two high speed E-Z Pass lanes at the toll plaza. This project will reduce backups at the
toll plaza by allowing more of the E-Z Pass users to have their own high speed lanes through the facility;
which will additionally free up space for cash customers.
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Vehicle Trips and Delaware Turnpike Revenue
(dollars and vehicles in millions, percent change and totals
calculated from unrounded data)

Vehicles
Through the Toll
Toll Barrier Change Revenue
13.0 -- $9.0
13.3 1.9% 12.4
14.0 5.5 13.1
14.4 2.5 18.2
15.0 4.5 19.7
15.6 4.1 20.5
16.9 8.3 22.3
18.7 10.4 24.6
19.9 6.5 26.1
20.5 3.2 28.3
21.0 2.1 29.0
21.8 4.0 29.5
22.3 2.4 30.4
22.3 (0.2) 36.7
23.5 54 40.3
23.8 1.7 40.6
25.1 4.7 41.8
25.6 2.2 433
25.8 0.7 51.3
26.1 1.2 60.1
26.7 2.2 61.6
27.6 34 62.1
27.7 0.3 60.1
28.6 3.0 60.1
28.4 (0.5) 57.9
27.5 (3.1 84.7
27.1 (1.5) 93.6
26.4 (2.6) 115.4
25.8 (2.3) 118.8
25.5 (1.2) 117.2
24.5 (4.2) 114.1

(O]

@

(3)

Q)

©®)

(6)

@)

Concession
Revenue

$1.1
1.1
1.0
1.3
1.3
1.3
1.4
1.4
1.7
1.7
1.7
1.9
2.0
2.1
2.2
23
24
24
2.5
2.5
2.6
2.5
2.5
2.8
2.8
3.0
3.1
2.5
24
2.2
1.8

Toll and
Concession
Revenue

$10.1
13.5
14.1
20.1
21.0
21.8
23.7
26.0
27.8
30.0
30.7
31.4
324
38.8
42.5
429
44.2
45.7
53.8
62.6
64.2
64.6
62.6
62.9
60.7
87.7
96.7
117.9
121.2
119.4
1159

()
2)
3)
4)
©)
(6)
(M

Toll increase effective April 15, 1981.
Toll increase effective July 1, 1983.

Toll adjustments effective October 1, 1989.
Toll increase effective September 1, 1993.

Toll increase for Non-E-Z Pass cars effective on January 4, 1999.
Toll increase effective October 1, 2005.
Toll increase effective October 1, 2007.
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Change

33.7%
44
42.6
45
3.8
8.7
9.7
6.9
7.9
2.3
2.3
32
19.7
9.5
0.9
3.0
3.4
17.6
16.3
2.6
0.6
(3.0)
0.4
(3.4)
445
10.3
21.9
2.8
(1.5)
2.9)

(O]
(O]
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The following graph illustrates the growth of traffic through the toll gates of the Delaware Turnpike
from fiscal 1981 through fiscal 2011.

Delaware Turnpike Toll Traffic
Fiscal 1981-2011
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Fiscal Year

Delaware Turnpike Toll Schedules. The Act authorizes the imposition of tolls at the main barrier
of the Delaware Turnpike. The Authority has broad power to determine the levels of the tolls. The
establishment of tolls does not involve public hearings, nor are the levels of tolls subject to approval by any
person or entity other than the Authority itself. In general, the Authority has set tolls to meet debt service
and reserve requirements on obligations sold to fund Delaware Turnpike projects, to meet operating and
maintenance costs and to fund the costs of constructing and reconstructing feeder roads and related facilities
used by Delaware Turnpike travelers.
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The following table summarizes the recent toll history and indicates the percentage

collected in fiscal 2011 by class of vehicle.
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Delaware Turnpike Barrier Tolls

January 4, 1999 -

October 1, 2005 -

October 1, 2007

of toll revenue

Toll Revenue

September 30, 2005 September 30, 2007 to Present (4) by Vehicle Class

Commuter Vehicle n/a n/a n/a n/a
High Occupancy Vehicle (2) $0.63 n/a n/a n/a
Passenger cars, pick up and panel trucks $2.00 $3.00 $4.00 32.5%
Passenger cars, pick up and panel trucks-EZP $1.25 $3.00 $4.00 43.5%
Two axles, six tire trucks n/a n/a n/a n/a
Three axles trucks $2.50 $5.00 $6.00 2.4%
Three axles trucks EZP 10 p.m. - 6 a.m. (3) n/a $1.25 n/a n/a
Four axle trucks $3.75 $6.00 $7.00 2.0%
Four axle trucks EZP 10 p.m. - 6 a.m. (3) n/a $1.50 n/a n/a
Five axle trucks $5.00 $8.00 $9.00 19.2%
Five axle trucks EZP 10 p.m. - 6 a.m. (3) n/a $2.00 n/a n/a
Six axle trucks $6.25 $10.00 $11.00 0.3%
Six axle trucks EZP 10 p.m. - 6 a.m. (3) n/a $2.50 n/a n/a
Special permit vehicles $10.00 $10.00 $11.00 0.1%

1) Includes toll revenue from two axle, six tire trucks which are now in the same vehicle class as passenger cars, pick up and

panel trucks.
2) Special 50% discount applied when commuter’s vehicle has two or more passengers.
3) Commencing October 1, 2005, toll increase and discounts offered to commercial E-Z Pass customers during the hours of
10 p.m. to 6 a.m.
4 Commencing October 1, 2007, all vehicle class tolls increased by $1.00, and the night-time discount offered to

commercial E-Z Pass customers during the hours of 10 p.m. to 6 a.m. was discontinued.
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Projections of Delaware Turnpike Toll and Concession Revenue. DEFAC projects toll and
concession revenue which projections are set forth in the following chart.

Projected Toll and

Concession Revenue of Delaware Turnpike
(dollars in millions)

(0]

Fiscal Year Toll Revenue'® Concessions Total Revenue Percent Change
2012 114.0 1.8 115.8 -0.1%%
2013 115.3 1.8 117.1 1.1%
2014 117.5 1.9 1194 2.0%
2015 119.8 1.9 121.7 1.9%
2016 122.2 1.9 124.1 2.0%
2017 124.7 2.0 126.7 2.1%
2018 127.2 2.0 129.2 2.0%

(1)  Projections provided by DEFAC from its March 19, 2012 meeting.
(2)  Excludes “Other Turnpike Revenue”.
(3) Percent change from fiscal 2011 actual.

Route 1 Toll Road

General. The Authority has completed a fully controlled access highway of 41 miles extending
from a connection with the southern terminus of the new Route 1 Toll Road just south of Wilmington to
points south of Dover on U.S. Routes 13 and 113. A new high-level bridge across the Chesapeake and
Delaware Canal was opened for traffic during December 1995.

The southern portion of the project was opened for traffic during December 1993. This section is
approximately 9 miles and extends from north of Smyrna southward to south of State Route 10 in the
vicinity of the Dover Air Force Base. This section also includes a mainline toll plaza and one ramp toll for
access to and from the City of Dover.

A portion of the northern section of approximately 4.8 miles, including a new bridge over the
Chesapeake and Delaware Canal, was opened for traffic in December 1995. On November 17, 1999, this
Section was extended another 9 miles south to Odessa. This section has a main-line toll plaza (the Biddle's
Plaza) and tolls on the southerly interchange ramps at Route 896 (Boyd's Corner). The final section from
south of Odessa to north of Smyrna was finished in May 2003.

Most Recent Toll Increase (Fiscal 2008). With input from the General Assembly and the then
Governor and her Administration, the Authority evaluated the current toll structure and found that amending
the current structure of the Route 1 Toll Road would be in the best interest of the Authority.

Effective October 1, 2007, passenger tolls at the Biddles and Dover plazas were increased by $1.00
on weekends (weekends are defined as the period between 7:00 p.m. ET on Friday through 11 p.m. ET on
Sunday). Passenger weekday and weekend tolls at the other toll areas remained unchanged.

Commercial traffic tolls were raised by $.25 per axle at Smyrna and $.50 per axle at Denneys and
Boyds. At Biddles and Dover the commercial toll was raised by $1.00 per axle on weekdays and an
additional $1.00 per axle on weekends.

Effective October 1, 2007, the 15% E-Z Pass discount was eliminated. Passenger frequency

discounts of 50% for travelers who meet the “30 trips in 30 days” requirement remained in place. The
commercial E-Z Pass discount was reduced from 50% to 25%, and is still available without a minimum trip
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requirement. The High Occupancy Vehicle (“HOV”) Plan discount was also eliminated. The new toll
structure is listed below:

Denneys Road Biddles Plaza and
Vehicle Class Smyrna  and Boyds Corner Dover Plazas
All Days All Days Weekday  Weekend
TWO AXI€..uvviiiiiiiiiieiieieiieee $ 0.25 $ 0.50 $ 1.00 $2.00
Three axle......coovvvvvvvveeviinennnnn, 0.75 1.50 3.00 4.00
Four axle.......ccoovvvviviviieiinnnnnn, 1.00 2.00 4.00 5.00
Five axle...cccoovvviviiiiiiiiiiieee, 1.25 2.50 5.00 6.00
SiX AXI€.evviiiiiiieiiiieieeeeeeeee, 1.50 3.00 6.00 7.00
Permit.....cccooovevveiiiiniieeiiiieeen, $11.00 $11.00

Historic and Projected State Route 1 Toll Revenue. Fiscal 1995 represented the first full year of
operation for the Route 1 Toll Road. Total revenues of $6.4 million exceeded the forecast of $5.7 million
projected in connection with the sale of the 1994 Series Senior Bonds. DEFAC’s projected toll revenue for
the entire Route 1 Toll Road, assuming the present toll structure was maintained at both mainline toll
barriers, is set forth in the following table. Total annual revenues to be generated from the entire toll road
are expected to increase to approximately $48.7 million by fiscal 2018. Revenue from the Route 1 Toll
Road is not pledged to secure the Bonds.

8-
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Route 1 Toll Road

Historical and Projected Toll Revenue
(dollars in millions, percentage change calculated from unrounded data)

Total Toll Percent
Fiscal Year Revenue Change
1995 $6.40
1996 7.4 15.6
1997 8.4 13.1
1998 9.2 8.9
1999 9.7 5.8
2000 16.4 69.8
2001 20.7 25.7
2002 24.2 17.2
2003 25.4 5
2004 27.1 6.5
2005 30.2 11.3
2006 31.5 4.5
2007 32.6 3.4
2008 40.5% 2423
2009 445 9.9
2010 45.5 2.3
2011 44 .4 24
Forecasted-
2012 44 8" 2.7
2013 45,50 1.6
2014 46.31 1.6
2015 46.9" 1.4
2016 47.5" 1.3
2017 4810 1.3
2018 48,70 1.3

(1) Projections provided by DEFAC from its March 19, 2012 meeting.
(2) Toll increase effective October 1, 2007.
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Motor Vehicle Document Fees
General

Motor vehicle document fees are imposed upon the sale or transfer of any new or used motor
vehicle, truck tractor, trailer or motorcycle in the State. These fees contributed $68.3 million in fiscal 2011,
18.2% of the revenue pledged to the Bonds in fiscal 2011.

Fiscal 2008 Fee Increase. Effective October 1, 2007, the document fee increased by $.50 per
hundred dollars of the net vehicle purchase price. The new fee increased from $2.75 per hundred to $3.25
per hundred.

Fiscal 2009 Fee Increase. Effective October 1, 2008, the second phase of the document fee
increase became effective. The new increase of an additional $.50 per hundred increased the fee to $3.75
per hundred.

The document fee, which is based on the vehicle purchase price, is paid by the owners and collected
by the State for deposit in the TTF. If the price of the vehicle is less than $400, the fee is $8; if the price is
$400 to $500, the fee is $13.75. Thereafter, the fee increases by $3.75 for each additional $100 of vehicle
purchase price or any fraction thereof. The following table summarizes the history of motor vehicle
document fee collections from fiscal 1981 through fiscal 2011.
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History of Motor Vehicle Document Fees
(vehicles in thousands and dollars in millions,
percent change calculated from unrounded data)

Vehicles
FY Titled Change Revenue Change
1981 181.7 8.4
1982 177.2 2.5 % 9.0 72 %
1983 190.0 7.2 11.1 235
1984 233.8 23.1 14.5 30.0
1985 229.6 (1.8) 16.7 15.5
1986 251.4 95 19.5 17.0
1987 2743 9.1 21.1 8.1
1988 270.6 (1.3) 22.1 4.7
1989 2332 (13.8) 22.6 23
1990 213.8 (8.3) 22.6 0.2)
1991 209.7 (1.9) 19.7 (12.7)
1992 196.4 (6.3) 19.5 (0.8)
1993 193.0 (1.7) 21.0 7.7
1994 199.0 3.1 303 @ 443
1995 215.5 8.3 38.6 27.4
1996 211.6 (1.8) 39.9 33
1997 216.5 23 425 6.7
1998 217.0 0.3 44.4 4.4
1999 224.9 3.6 48.1 8.3
2000 232.7 3.5 52.9 9.9
2001 234.0 0.5 52.8 0.0
2002 244.1 43 55.2 45
2003 248.2 1.7 57.7 4.6
2004 262.3 5.7 62.5 8.4
2005 276.1 5.2 65.7 5.0
2006 275.8 (0.1) 64.8 (1.3)
2007 264.7 (4.0) 62.7 (3.3)
2008 250.1 (5.5) 646 @ 3.0
2009 214.9 (14.1) 562 @ (13.0)
2010 215.9 0.5 58.4 3.8
2011 232.0 75 68.3 17.1

(1) Includes titles for both new and used vehicles which closely approximates total car sales during each fiscal year.
(2) Reflects rate increase from 2% to 2.75%, effective September 1, 1993.

(3) Reflects rate increase from $2.75 per hundred to $3.25 per hundred, effective October 1, 2007.

(4) Reflects rate increase from $3.25 per hundred to $3.75 per hundred, effective October 1, 2008.
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The revenue stream in the previous table is illustrated by the following graph.

Motor Vehicle Document Fee Revenue
1981-2011
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The average annual rate of growth in revenue was 8.0% between fiscal 1994 and fiscal 2007, due in
large part to increases in new car sales and document fees (as described below). The average annual rate of
growth in revenue was 4.2% between fiscal 1996 and fiscal 2007, despite no increase in the document fee.
Document fee revenue is generated by the number of transactions as well as the cost of the vehicle
transferred. Fiscal 2008 saw revenues increase by 3.0% primarily due to the fee increase. The slowing
economy contributed to poor auto sales, as vehicle titles decreased by 5.5% from fiscal 2007.

Document fee revenue decreased in fiscal years 1990 through 1992 reflecting that recessionary
period. Fiscal 1993 revenue increased 7.7% as the economy improved as indicated by the increase in new
car sales of 5.6%. The trend continued during fiscal 1994 as revenue increased over 44% as a result of an
increase in new car sales of over 9.1% combined with the document fee increase from 2% to 2.75% in
September 1993.

Again in fiscal 2008 both new and used car sales were down compared to the previous year.
Tightening credit conditions along with higher interest rates slowed vehicle sales. These issues combined
with increased energy costs reduced consumers disposable income and borrowing ability which resulted in
weaker vehicle sales. The continued poor economic conditions caused a reduction in fiscal 2009 revenues.
Fiscal 2010 titles and revenues started to show an increase, as conditions started to improve. Fiscal 2011
document fee revenues were very strong, increasing by 17.1%, the gain can be attributed to the easing of
bank financing and pent up demand as consumers once again started to replace older vehicles.
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Listed below are the DEFAC forecasts of document fee revenue through fiscal 2018.

Projected Motor Vehicle Document Fees

(vehicles in thousands and dollars in millions)

Fiscal Vehicles Percent

Year Titled Change Revenue Change
2012 236.9 2.1%% 69.8 2.1%?
2013 244.0 3.0% 71.9 3.0%
2014 251.3 3.0% 74.1 3.0%
2015 258.8 3.0% 76.3 3.0%
2016 266.6 3.0% 78.6 3.0%
2017 274.6 3.0% 80.9 3.0%
2018 282.8 3.0% 83.4 3.0%

(1) Projections provided by DEFAC from its March 19, 2012 meeting.
(2) Percent change from fiscal 2011 actual.

Motor Vehicle Registration Fees

General

Motor vehicle registration fees are paid at the time of application for the registration of a motor
vehicle and prior to the issuance of the required registration plates by the Division of Motor Vehicles. The
revenue (net of refunds to other states) from this source was $47.2 million in fiscal 2011 and constituted
12.5% of the revenue pledged to the Bonds in fiscal 2011.

Since October 1986, new cars can be registered for a three-year period and effective September
1990, new or used cars have had the option to renew for a two-year period. Commencing in July 2000, any
newly-manufactured current model year motor vehicle or trailer with a gross registered weight of 10,000 Ibs.
or less not previously registered or titled in any state or country may be initially registered by the owner for
five years or less. Passenger cars have paid $20 per year since 1965 while trucks pay according to their
weight. On October 1, 1991, the registration fee for commercial vehicles increased from $2.60 to $5.20 for
each 1000 pounds or fraction thereof in excess of 5,000 pounds as part of the three year plan to increase fees
in this category. On July 1, 1992 this fee was increased to $12.00 for each such 1000 pounds or fraction
thereof. The third increase to $16.80 for each such 1000 pounds or fraction thereof became effective on
July 1, 1993.

Effective October 1, 2007, passenger car registration and the base commercial registration fee
increased by $20 per year to $40 per year. Additionally, the registration weight fee for commercial vehicles
increased from $16.80 for each 1000 pounds or fraction thereof in excess of 5,000 pounds to $18.00 for each
1,000 pounds. Motorcycle registration increased from $10 to $15 annually; recreational vehicle, farm truck
and trailer registrations and weight fees were also increased.

During January 1995, the Department established the Motor Carrier Service Section to support the
trucking industry and entered into a base state agreement under the International Registration Plan (“IRP”)
for the collection and distribution of commercial registration fees for vehicles in excess of 26,000 pounds.
Under IRP, commercial registration fee revenue is a function of the miles traveled in each state and the
registration fee assessed by each state.
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From fiscal 1981 - 2011, the average annual growth rate of registrations in the State has been 2.2%
and the average annual growth rate of revenue from those registrations has been 4.6%, largely due to
commercial fee increases enacted in fiscal 1992 and the various fee increases in October 2008. Registration
fee revenue growth since fiscal 1987 has varied from the growth in the number of vehicles registered. In
fiscal 1987 and fiscal 1988, revenue increased faster than vehicles registered, whereas in fiscal 1989 and
fiscal 1990 revenue decreased while the number of vehicles registered increased. The variances are
primarily due to the option, beginning in fiscal 1987, for new car owners to elect a three-year registration
period. In fiscal 1991, growth in vehicles registered was flat but revenue increased 14.8% due to the
implementation of a two-year registration option for used vehicles. Increases in commercial registration
fees were phased in from fiscal 1992 through 1994, contributing to increases in revenue of 7.8%, 4.7% and
11.4%, respectively. The growth in registered vehicles from fiscal 2000 to fiscal 2011 was 20.8% as
registrations increased to 839.7 from 695.2. This motor vehicle growth rate is directly correlated to the
population growth rate in Delaware. In fiscal 2008, registration revenue grew by 31.2% largely due to the
fee increases. Vehicle registration slowed, growing only 1.0%, partially due to the slowing housing market,
which limited the influx of new residents entering the state and registering their vehicles. The continued
poor economic conditions caused small reductions in fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2010 registration counts.
However, revenues increased in both fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2010; this is possible because revenues are
affected not only by the number of registrations but the type of registration and term selected. The
registration term can be from Y4 of a year to up to 5 years for new vehicles.

Historical Summary of Vehicle Registrations and Revenue

The following table shows the historical record of vehicle registrations and registration fees for the
last thirty-one fiscal years:
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History of Vehicle Registrations and Revenue
(dollars in millions, vehicle registrations in thousands,
percent change calculated from unrounded data)

Vehicle Percentage Registration Percentage

Registration Change Revenue Change
1981 433.7 - $12.6 --
1982 438.7 1.2% 12.6 (0.1)%
1983 451.3 2.9 12.9 23
1984 468.0 3.7 13.5 4.6
1985 485.2 3.7 14.2 4.8
1986 503.0 3.7 14.4 1.6
1987 515.7 2.5 153 (1) 6.5
1988 536.0 39 16.2 5.7
1989 560.4 4.5 15.6 3.7
1990 565.0 0.8 14.9 (4.3)
1991 565.1 0.0 17.1 2) 14.8
1992 581.0 2.8 18.4 3) 7.8
1993 592.8 2.0 19.3 “4) 4.7
1994 598.3 0.9 21.5 (5) 11.4
1995 617.7 3.2 22.2 (6) 33
1996 632.6 24 22.6 (6) 1.8
1997 649.3 2.6 23.0 (6) 1.6
1998 668.3 2.9 24.8 (6) 8.0
1999 687.1 2.8 24.2 (6) (2.4)
2000 695.2 1.2 26.6 (6) 10.1
2001 722.9 4.0 27.0 (6) 1.0
2002 747.5 34 28.0 (6) 4.0
2003 762.9 2.1 27.8 (6) 0.7)
2004 790.0 3.5 28.3 (6) 1.8
2005 814.3 3.1 30.2 (6) 6.5
2006 834.3 2.5 30.2 (6) 0.2
2007 848.6 1.7 31.5 (6) 4.1
2008 856.7 1.0 413 (6,7) 31.2
2009 845.8 -1.0 433 6) 4.8
2010 832.7 -1.5 44.5 6) 2.8
2011 839.7 0.8 47.2 (6) 59

(1) Effective October 1, 1986, new cars owners had the option to register the vehicle for a three year period. Commencing on
October 1, 1999, new car owners had the option to register the cars for a four-year period or a five-year period for a fee equal
to $20.00 for each year in the period.

2) New and used vehicle owners had the option to renew the registration for a two year period commencing September 1, 1990.

3) Fee increase for vehicles in excess of 5,000 pounds effective October 1, 1991.

4) Fee increase for vehicles in excess of 5,000 pounds effective July 1, 1992.

%) Fee increase for vehicles in excess of 5,000 pounds effective July 1, 1993.

(6) Net of refunds to other states under IRP.

7 Various registration fee increases effective October 1, 2007.
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The growth of vehicle registrations in the previous table is illustrated in the following graph:

Motor Vehicle Registrations
1981-2011
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Projected Registration Fee Revenue”
(vehicles in thousands and dollars in millions)
Fiscal Percent Percent
Year Vehicles Change Revenue Change
2012 807.8 -3.8%? $45.4 -3.8%?
2013 831.2 2.9% $46.7 2.9%
2014 856.2 3.0% $48.1 3.0%
2015 882.7 3.1% $49.6 3.1%
2016 909.2 3.0% $51.1 3.0%
2017 937.4 3.1% $52.7 3.1%
2018 965.5 3.0% $54.3 3.0%

(1) Projections provided by DEFAC from its March 19, 2012 meeting. All amounts are net of refunds for IRP.
(2) Percent change from fiscal 2011 actual.

Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue
Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue

Motor carrier registration fees, operator license fees, titling fees, Division of Motor Vehicles record
sales, vanity tag fees and other miscellaneous transportation related revenue which have been assigned by
the State to the TTF and which have been pledged by the Authority to secure the bonds are herein referred to
as “Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue”.

Motor carrier registration fee revenue is collected with respect to trucks registered in Delaware and
totaled $2.9 million (net of refunds) in fiscal 2011. Motor carrier registration fees are comprised of the
motor fuel road use tax, hauling permits, temporary operating permits, and penalty and interest. The road
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use tax is calculated based upon the miles traveled in Delaware, the average miles per gallon, the actual fuel
purchased in Delaware and the rate of the motor fuel tax. To the extent that fuel purchases are less than fuel
used, the truckers are taxed at the current motor fuel tax rate for the difference. If fuel purchases in the State
exceed the amount of fuel used while traveling roads in Delaware, refunds are made to the motor carrier.

The State charges various fees for obtaining a driver's license. Effective July 9, 2007, the fee for a
five-year license to operate a passenger vehicle was increased from $12.50 to $25.00. Commercial drivers’
licenses remained unchanged at $30.00. The revenue from these fees was $4.7 million in fiscal 2011.

The Division of Motor Vehicles sells driver and vehicle records for $15 per document and $20 per
certified document. Revenue from these sales was $7.6 million in fiscal 2011. Motor vehicle titling fees are
also charged by the Division of Motor Vehicles. Prior to August 1, 1991, a certificate of title cost $4.
Effective August 1, 1991, titling fees increased from $4 to $15. Effective October 1, 2007, the title fee
increased from $15 to $25, and from $25 to $35 for titles with a lien. These fees generated $8.0 million in
revenue in fiscal 2011.

State residents may buy “vanity” license plates for their vehicles. The current annual cost for a
“vanity” license plate is $40.00 in addition to the $40.00 annual registration fee. There were 20,255 “vanity
tags” sold in fiscal 2011, generating revenue of $.9 million. In addition to vanity tag revenue, the
Department also receives other Division of Motor Vehicle revenue from the issuance of temporary tags and
permits, reinstatement fees and nine other miscellaneous categories. Effective August 1, 1991, fees for
temporary tags and permits each increased from $4 to $10. Revenue from other miscellaneous sources of
Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue aggregated $3.4 million in fiscal 2011.

Effective July 9, 2007, the fee for ID cards was also increased from $5.00 to $20.00.

Historical Summary of Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue

The following table outlines the history of revenue from these sources from fiscal 1981 through
fiscal 2011.
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History of Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue
(dollars in millions, percent change calculated from unrounded data)

Total Miscellaneous

Transportation Revenue Change
1981 $3.4 --
1982 3.5 M 2.9 %
1983 3.8 8.6
1984 4.1 7.9
1985 44 7.3
1986 5.3 @ 205
1987 5.8 @ 9.4
1988 7.1 @ 224
1989 6.3 (11.3)
1990 7.0 11.1
1991 7.9 © 12.9
1992 12.3 © 55.7
1993 13.0 5.7
1994 12.9 (0.8)
1995 13.9 @ 7.8
1996 14.6 5.0
1997 15.5 6.2
1998 15.7 1.3
1999 15.8 0.6
2000 16.4 3.5
2001 17.4 6.2
2002 18.2 44
2003 17.3 4.9)
2004 19.6 13.2
2005 24.5 ® 25.5
2006 24.0 24
2007 23.8 0.7)
2008 29.3 ) 23.1
2009 27.4 (6.5)
2010 25.7 (6.2)
2011 27.5 7.0
(1) Motor Fuel Tax increased from 9 to 11 cents on August 1, 1981.
?) Titling Fee increased from $2 to $4 effective September 1, 1985.
3) Motor Fuel Tax increased from 11 to 13 cents on October 1, 1986.
“4) Motor Fuel Tax increased from 13 to 16 cents on September 1, 1987. Sale of driver and vehicle records increased from $2 to $4
per copy effective July 1, 1987.
5) Fee increases for Vanity Tags ($25 to $28.75), Temporary Tags ($2 to $4), License Reinstatement Fees ($125 to $143.75) and
Temporary Permits ($2 to $2.30) on July 1, 1990.
(6) Motor Fuel Tax increased from 16 to 19 cents effective January 1, 1991. Titling fees increased from $4 to $15 effective

August 1, 1991. Increases in miscellaneous motor vehicle fees (Vanity Tags, Temporary Tags and Temporary Permits) became
effective August 1, 1991.

(@) Hauling permits transferred from General Fund and rate on special fuels increased 3 cents from $.19 to $.22 per gallon effective
January 1, 1995.
®) Driving and vehicle records increased from $4 to $15 per record and certified documents increased from $8 to $20 effective
July 1, 2004.
) Various fee increases effective in fiscal 2008.
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Non-Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue

During its August 1999 legislative session, the General Assembly dedicated an annual amount of
$10,000,000 from its escheat revenues for transfer to the TTF on an annual basis. In fiscal 2003, the
$10,000,000 escheat revenue was not transferred to the TTF. Such escheat revenue was transferred to the
TTF in fiscal 2004, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2006. In fiscal 2007, the escheat contribution to the TTF was
increased to $24,000,000. The scheduled fiscal 2008, 2009 and 2010 transfers of escheat revenues to the
TTF were suspended. These revenues were used by the General Fund to help make up for revenue shortfalls
during fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2009. Due to continuing budget concerns, the General Assembly also did not
make the scheduled transfer of escheat revenues to the TTF in fiscal 2010. In fiscal 2011 the TTF received
a General Fund appropriation of $14,000,000. It was also legislated that additional transfers of up to
$70,000,000 would be made to various funds if the States escheat revenue receipts exceeded $424,000,000
during the fiscal year. Under this legislation the second receipt of $10,000,000 was transferred to the TTF.
In fiscal 2012, legislation increased the TTF contribution to $40,000,000 and it is expected that $40,000,000
of escheat revenues will be transferred to the TTF in the fiscal years subsequent to fiscal 2012; however, the
Authority and the Department emphasize that the appropriation of the escheat monies to the TTF each year
is subject to the discretion of the General Assembly, and when there are budget constraints, it is possible that
the General Assembly will suspend the appropriation of escheat revenues to the TTF in such years. See
footnote (1) to the Base Financial Plan — Capital table under “TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL PROJECTS
AND FINANCING PLANS — Current Financial Plan” herein.

During its June 1997 legislative session, the General Assembly approved the transfer of three
revenue sources from the General Fund to the TTF effective during fiscal 1998. These revenue sources
include: (1) the motor vehicle dealer handling fee assessed at $2 for every vehicle sold by auto dealers; (2)
the annual license fees for all motor vehicle dealers charged at $100 per year; and (3) the motor vehicle use
tax on lessees and lessors based on amount of lease payments. The tax rate for lessees is 1.92% of total
amount and the rate for lessors is .288%. With the passage of SB 336, the transfer of the lease tax and the
transfer of the lessor’s license fee to the trust fund have been repealed. In fiscal 2010, this revenue source
generated $0.3 million. New legislation, HB 264, was also passed adding a 50% surcharge to all Title 21
offenses. The new surcharge revenue will be transferred to the TTF. HB 264 became effective on January
1, 2008, and added $3.3 million revenue in fiscal 2010. This new revenue source is expected to generate
$3.5 million annually in additional trust fund revenue. In fiscal 2011, the TTF received $3.2M from this
revenue source.

The Department’s capital program requires the acquisition of real property in advance of actual
construction. Once construction is completed, any property acquired for the project, but no longer needed,
is sold. As a by-product of this process the Department manages a portfolio of properties awaiting
construction or disposal. All such lease revenues are transferred to the TTF. These revenues are not
pledged. The Department has provided preliminary forecasts through fiscal 2017 for this revenue stream
which are included in the table below.

In connection with the issuance by the Authority of its Transportation System Senior Revenue
Bonds, Series 2010B (Federally Taxable — Build America Bonds) (the “2010B Bonds™), the Authority
irrevocably elected to receive periodic interest subsidy payments from the United States Treasury on each
interest payment date for the 2010B Bonds equal to 35% of the amount of interest payable on the 2010B
Bonds on such date (the "BAB Subsidy Payments"). The BAB Subsidy Payments have not been pledged to
the holders of the 2012 Bonds, and will be considered Non-Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue.
Such payments are not reflected in the projections for Non-Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue
contained in this Official Statement.
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Projections of Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue

Current Dedicated Sources. Projections for “Miscellancous Transportation Revenue” through fiscal
2018 are shown below.

Projected Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue
(dollars in millions)

Pledged Non-Pledged
Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Total Miscellaneous

Fiscal Transportation Transportation Transportation

Year Revenues Revenues® @ Revenue Change
2012 26.8 52.1 $78.9 26.4%Y
2013 27.5 52.2 $79.7 1.0%
2014 28.3 52.3 $80.6 1.1%
2015 29.1 524 $81.5 1.1%
2016 30.0 52.5 $82.5 1.2%
2017 30.9 52.6 $83.5 1.2%
2018 31.7 52.7 $84.4 1.1%

(1) Provided by DEFAC from its March 19, 2012 meeting. Includes IFTA/Motor Carrier Fees, vanity tags, record sales,
titles and other motor vehicle related fees, net of IFTA and DMV refunds.

(2) Not pledged by the Authority to secure the Bonds. Excludes the tolls from Route 1 Toll Road and the Delaware
Transit Corporation farebox. Includes escheat revenue, real estate lease and sales proceeds, use tax on motor vehicle
leases, motor vehicle handling and license fees, and development plan review fees, and various other transfers to the
TTF. The BAB Subsidy Payments expected to be received by the Authority are considered Non-Pledged
Miscellaneous Transportation Revenues, but have not been included in this table.

(3) $40,000,000 escheat revenue added in fiscal 2012 through fiscal 2018. See discussion of escheat revenue under
“SECURITY FOR THE BONDS — Non-Pledged Revenue” and footnote (1) to the Base Financial Plan — Capital
table under “TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL PROJECTS AND FINANCING PLANS — Current Financial Plan”
herein.

(4) Percent change from fiscal 2011 actual.
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Projected Total Revenue Sources

The following table shows in the aggregate for fiscal years 2012 through 2018 the projections of

total Pledged Revenue and Non-Pledged Revenue.

Projected Total Revenue Sources™

(dollars in millions)

Fiscal Pledged Percent Non-Pledged Percent Percent
Year Revenue® Change Revenue™ Change Total  Change
2012 371.7 -1.2%® 96.9 20.8%Y  $468.6  2.7%Y
2013 379.9 2.2% 97.7 0.8% $477.6 1.9%
2014 389.8 2.6% 98.6 0.9% $488.4 2.3%
2015 399.0 2.4% 99.3 0.7% $498.3 2.0%
2016 408.4 2.4% 100.0 0.7% $508.4 2.0%
2017 418.7 2.5% 100.7 0.7% $519.4 2.2%
2018 429.1 2.5% 101.4 0.7% $530.5 2.1%

(1) Delaware Turnpike toll and concession revenue, investment earnings, Route 1 Toll Revenue, motor fuel revenue, motor
vehicle document fee revenue, motor vehicle registration fee revenue, Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue
and Non-Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue projected by DEFAC.

(2) Includes Delaware Turnpike Revenues, motor fuel tax revenues, motor vehicle document fee revenue, motor vehicle
registration fee revenue, Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue and investment earnings.

(3) Route 1 Toll Revenue, escheat revenues and other Non-Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenues. See discussion
of escheat revenue under “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS — Non-Pledged Revenue” herein. Does not include Delaware
Transit Corporation farebox transit revenue. The BAB Subsidy Payments expected to be received by the Authority are
considered Non-Pledged Miscellaneous Transportation Revenues, but have not been included in this table. Also, Port of
Wilmington loan repayments are not included.

(4) Percent change from fiscal 2011 actual.
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DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

The following table summarizes debt service requirements for the Authority's outstanding
Senior Bonds, as well as the 2012 Bonds in each fiscal year ending June 30 (assuming July 1 payments are
made on the previous June 30). No Junior Bonds are outstanding.

Prior
Outstanding Total
Fiscal Senior Bonds 2012 Senior Bonds Senior Bonds
Year Debt Service"® Principal Interest Debt Service®
2012 $124,059,642 $0 $0 $124,059,642
2013 101,685,809 2,245,000 12,960,078 116,890,887
2014 92,122,109 9,085,000 10,536,350 111,743,459
2015 91,527,959 9,945,000 10,082,100 111,555,059
2016 90,360,259 5,395,000 9,584,850 105,340,109
2017 66,200,759 25,600,000 9,423,000 101,223,759
2018 49,142,215 38,800,000 8,143,000 96,085,215
2019 62,742,615 21,555,000 6,203,000 90,500,615
2020 67,961,838 12,715,000 5,125,250 85,802,088
2021 52,422,663 23,100,000 4,489,500 80,012,163
2022 40,641,533 30,280,000 3,334,500 74,256,033
2023 40,554,085 24,800,000 1,820,500 67,174,585
2024 40,471,925 19,350,000 580,500 60,402,425
2025 52,227,499 52,227,499
2026 39,692,826 39,692,826
2027 29,877,006 29,877,006
2028 29,769,206 29,769,206
2029 26,151,490 26,151,490
2030 7,628,180 7,628,180
Total® $1.105,239,616 $222.870,000  $82,282,628 $1,410,392,244

" This column does not include debt service on the Refunded Bonds, except that portion which has already been
set aside for payment by the Authority.

@ The interest shown on the above table includes the total amount of interest on the Authority’s Build America
Bonds issued in 2010, that is, it does not take into account the BAB Subsidy Payments expected to be
received.

© Totals may not add due to rounding.
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TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL PROJECTS AND FINANCING PLANS
Capital Transportation Program

The Capital Transportation Program is a six-year planning document which is updated annually by
the Department, coordinated with the two Metropolitan Planning Organizations (“MPQOs”), approved by the
Council on Transportation and the first year of which is authorized by the General Assembly.

The Capital Transportation Program is presented as a plan to the Council on Transportation (the
“Council” or “COT”), a nine-member citizen committee created by State law to serve as an advisor with
respect to transportation matters to the Governor, the Secretary and the Authority. The Council has final
approval of and adopts the Capital Transportation Program after holding public hearings. The Council may
make priority changes to the proposed Capital Transportation Program in an open meeting by documenting
the reasons and justifications for the changes. If the Council fails to adopt a Capital Transportation Program
after a reasonable period of time, the Secretary may, with the approval of the Governor and with forty days
prior written notice to the Chairperson of the Council, give final approval to the Capital Transportation
Program. The first year is the basis for the Department's portion of the State's annual capital budget, which
must be enacted into law before being implemented.

On August 10, 2005, the President signed into law the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient
Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (“SAFETEA-LU”). With guaranteed funding for highways,
highway safety, and public transportation totaling $244.1 billion, SAFETEA-LU represents the largest
surface transportation investment in our American history. The two landmark bills that brought surface
transportation into the 21% Century — the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991
(“ISTEA”) and the Transportation Equity Act for the 21* Century (“TEA-21) shaped the highway program
to meet the nation’s changing transportation needs. SAFETEA-LU builds on this firm foundation,
supplying the funds and refining the programmatic framework for investments needed to maintain and grow
our vital transportation infrastructure. SAFETEA-LU promotes more efficient and effective Federal surface
transportation programs by focusing on transportation issues of national significance, while giving State and
local transportation decision makers more flexibility for solving transportation problems in their
communities.

Based on the revised procedures required by ISTEA, the State and the MPOs are required to seek
public input and develop a transportation improvement plan of projects of regional significance which will
be funded with federal funds. This plan must assure Clean Air conformity; projects must be prioritized
based on criteria established in the ISTEA legislation; and it must include at least a three-year plan (now
four years under SAFETEA-LU) of programs. Delaware has two MPOs, one serving the Wilmington
urbanized area and representing all of New Castle County; and one serving the Dover urbanized area and
which has been modified to represent all of Kent County. Sussex County does not have an urbanized area,
and therefore is not represented by an MPO. The Department does, however, work closely with the County
Council of Sussex County.

In preparing its capital spending plans through fiscal 2018, the Department has formulated its
Capital Transportation Program by purpose and function for all modes of transportation. Listed below are
the names and descriptions of each category which include transportation investments for all modes:

Road System: Improvements to roads, bridges, and adjacent assets;
Grants and Allocations: Municipal Street Aid and Community Transportation Funds;
Transit System: Investments in transit services including buses, rail, facilities,

and other assets supporting transit users;

Support System: All other investments in the transportation network including
facilities, equipment, information systems, etc.
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As described above, the Department prepares estimates of capital needs for the current year and also
for the ensuing years in the Capital Transportation Program. The Department, however, cannot undertake or
commit to projects in the proposed six-year program without specific authorization by the State.

Capital Program — Long Range Financial Planning

The new Secretary of DelDOT, Shailen P. Bhatt, brings a new vision to DelDOT and has stated that
his focus will be on the new culture within the agency — both in DelDOT’s thinking and the way it does
business.

In doing this, DelDOT has introduced its new initiative, “TEAM DelDOT,” with the intent of
revitalizing the organization with through creating a Transparent, Efficient, Accountable and Measured
DelDOT. The goals of the initiative are as follows:

e Transparent — posting property acquisitions on the DelDOT website for public view;

e FEfficient — providing quick and precise responses to earthquake and hurricane threats, and ensuring
that projects are delivered on time and on budget;

e Accountable — providing DelDOT’s performance metrics with the public via the new “dashboard”
on the DelDOT website; and

e  Measured — aiming to provide improved customer service which can be measured with established
performance metrics.

The Secretary has also proposed a different way of conducting business. Rather than program all of
the projects DelDOT can afford, the new Capital Transportation Program will be based on what DelDOT
can responsively and realistically deliver. The Capital Transportation Program will focus on maintaining the
core transportation infrastructure, and maximizing Federal Funds, before considering advancing the Capital
Transportation Program. The Secretary is committed to reducing the DelDOT’s $1.2 billion debt load and
tightening spending priorities. The Secretary intends to maintain a Capital Transportation Program that is
“robust, realistic and responsible.”

A new revenue package was implemented in fiscal 2008 and included toll increases on both of
Delaware’s toll roads, as well as several Division of Motor Vehicle fee increases, as described in the
previous sections. A new non-pledged revenue source was also added to the TTF in the form of a 50%
surcharge on traffic violation fines. The Department will continue to work on cutting operating costs by
identifying and implementing various cost saving initiatives. Additional revenue enhancements and
opportunities are also being explored for future implementation.

Fiscal 2011 Establishment of a Transportation Trust Fund Committee

House Bill No. 500 established a committee to review the current issues facing the department and
directed the committee to provide a comprehensive report and recommendations to the Governor and
General Assembly by March 31, 2011. An excerpt from the Bill is reprinted below;

Section 112. Transportation Trust Fund. The Department continues to identify significant
shortfalls of funding for the Transportation Trust Fund (TTF). The increased demand on the
State’s transportation system, limited resources for design and construction for improved
safety and increases in the cost of land acquisition, labor and raw materials continue to
strain the TTF. Additionally, continued increases in borrowing could affect the current
excellent credit rating of the TTF. The Secretary of Transportation, in partnership with the
Council on Transportation will establish a small group of individuals to thoroughly explore,
examine and evaluate the resource needs for the comprehensive Capital Transportation
Program.
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The Task Force met their responsibilities and submitted a report as required. Below is a summary of
some of the finding in the report. The goal of the TTF Task Force was to provide information on possible
additional revenues to address potential gaps in capital funding for the TTF. More importantly, the TTF
Task Force recognized the criticality of providing for sustainable long-term transportation funding in order
support the infrastructure needs of the State. This infrastructure not only provided safe mobility for travelers
in our State but supported economic development and access to jobs, both in the near-term for construction
and the long-term viability of the State’s economy.

The Task Force held eight meetings and accumulated information regarding the current financial
condition, projected needs of the state’s transportation infrastructure and analyzed the effects of changes to
current revenue streams while they reviewed new revenue alternatives.

The report describes in detail how the TTF reached its current financial condition. It is important to
stress that the TTF is not insolvent; it enjoys a healthy credit rating from the major rating agencies and has
sufficient room in its critical financial measures, such as coverage ratios and debt tests.

The Fund continues to have a very good credit rating, but it is wise to be cautious of declining
revenues. The TTF’s financial condition was impacted by a number of variables, including declining
revenues due to a poor economy, accelerated growth in infrastructure needs and the accumulated impact of
borrowing, even within the 50/50 pay-go requirements, in order to meet annual project costs. Debt is rising
and the cost to maintain the infrastructure is exceeding the growth rate of revenue.

Although there is sufficient revenue to cover the TTF’s debt requirements and the credit rating is
strong, the problem cannot be solved through increased borrowing. Debt service costs currently represent
35% of all operating costs in the TTF. Debt service costs are rising and the useful life of some of the current
projects are less than the term of the 20 year debt.

In addition, the TTF Task Force cautions against changes in the pay-as-you-go percentage in
determining the amount of borrowing in a given year and Department management agrees. Reducing the
use of cash and increasing borrowing to pay for projects will accelerate debt and potentially put the TTF’s
credit rating in jeopardy. A favorable credit rating is critical to obtaining lower interest rates when
borrowing.

It was also pointed out that the Department has made considerable effort over the last two years to
reduce operating costs and increase efficiency as part of the Governor’s Performance Review process.
These actions included reducing consultant costs, reducing overtime, limiting cell phone usage,
renegotiating contracts, energy efficiency, eliminating vacant positions, and improved technology and
service delivery to increase efficiencies and reduce waste. While the Department continues to review its
operations for efficiencies, the cost savings from these actions alone will not close the gap necessary to
adequately fund the TTF.

The report provided revenue alternatives to be considered by the Governor and General Assembly to
correct a structural problem in the TTF. Among these alternatives were scenarios which depicted various
outcomes and allowed for the phasing in of selected revenue options to achieve the desired size of the
capital program.

The Task Force solicited diverse ideas from all areas impacting transportation, such as tolls, vehicle
fees, transit fares, operational savings and motor fuel taxes. Many of these ideas will require additional
research to determine the cost of implementation and any impacts to citizens and users of the system.

The Task Force did not recommend any specific revenue alternatives, but did propose a menu of
ideas and prioritized them on the basis of revenue size and each member’s viewpoint on the possibility of
implementation. The Task Force left the selection of these revenue alternatives for consideration of
implementation to the Governor and the General Assembly.
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Federal Funds
Level of Funding

The State has benefited from the authorizations granted under TEA-21 and SAFETEA-LU. The
State has and will continue to receive on average approximately $155 million annually in FHWA and
Federal Transportation Administration (“FTA”) apportionments under the legislation. The total federal
funding anticipated under fiscal 2012-2018 plan will be approximately $1,466 million.

Application of Innovative Financing Techniques

As part of its capital programming process, the Department is currently reviewing the timing of
federal apportionments to determine the potential expanded use of certain innovative financing techniques
available with federal funding. The Department is currently making use of “advanced construction” in the
programming of federal funds in an effort to accelerate some projects.

The Department has also performed a toll credit analysis and received FHWA approval of $197.8
million in state toll credits. The State’s credits can be applied toward the non-Federal share of projects
authorized under Title 23. The credits may also be used for transit projects authorized by Chapter 53 of
Title 49. The Department is currently looking into using these credits on upcoming projects. The
Department has identified eligible projects and has received Federal approval of the projects and has started
to utilize the credits.

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (“ARRA”)

The Department has identified eligible projects and has received the necessary approvals to move
ahead with capital projects utilizing ARRA funds. Delaware was allocated $121.9 million for highways,
bridges, pedestrian, bicycle and other projects and an additional $19 million for transit-related projects. The
Department anticipates meeting all Federal eligibility guidelines and fully utilizing all available funds.

On February 17, 2010, the Department successfully met the one year deadline to obligate
$142 million of FHWA and FTA stimulus funds.

Details on the ARRA projects can be found on the Departments website under the “Federal
Stimulus” tab at http://www.deldot.gov.

Grant Anticipation Revenue Vehicle (GARVEE) Bond Issue

In June 2010, the Authority utilized the GARVEE Bond Program, under which the cost of the debt
service is paid from federal funds. The GARVEE bonds sold by the Authority are backed by the annual
federal appropriations for federal-aid transportation projects and carry a 15-year term. The Authority was
able to issue these bonds without the additional backing or pledge of any TTF Revenues.

The Authority sold a total of $113,490,000 (par value) in bonds, and received an additional
$12,455,753.90 in premiums resulting in total proceeds of just under $126-million. The net proceeds from
the bond sale will be used for the completion of the design and the real estate acquisition for the US-301
Project. As of March 15, 2012, the underlying bond documents pertaining to the GARVEE bonds were
amended to allow proceeds of the GARVEE bonds to also be used for payment of the costs associated with
the construction and equipping of the US-301 Project.

Through the use of additional innovative credit enhancements, the Department successfully
structured the GARVEE bonds to protect the bondholders, preserve the integrity and high credit rating of the
TTF and achieve a rating of “AA” and “Aa2” by Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investor Services,
respectively.
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Diamond State Port Corporation

The Capital Transportation Program for fiscal 2002 contained a $27,500,000 loan which the TTF
made to the Diamond State Port Corporation (the “Port Corporation”) to enable the Port Corporation to
prepay or refinance certain obligations which it owed to the City of Wilmington related to the Port
Corporation's acquisition of the Port of Wilmington from the City. The Port Corporation was obligated to
repay the loan to the TTF over a 20-year term, which commenced in January, 2003. The Port Corporation
has not performed its obligations with respect to the loan.

Effective July 1, 2005, the Port Corporation loan was restructured. Unpaid interest through
January 1, 2006, in the amount of $3,260,013 was capitalized into the loan balance. The interest rate on the
restructured loan remained at 4.6%. The loan was to be repaid in 40 semi-annual payments of $1,168,031,
commencing on July 1, 2006, with the final payment to be made January 1, 2026.

Effective July 1, 2006, the Port Corporation loan was restructured again. Interest due on July 1,
2006 and January 1, 2007 was capitalized into the loan balance. $10,000,000 of the Department’s
$60,000,000 General Fund cash support for fiscal year 2007 was deemed to constitute a repayment of
principal and interest on behalf of the Port Corporation for the loan. Following the interest capitalization
and the $10,000,000 repayment, the remaining principal balance of the loan was $21,514,984. The interest
rate on the restructured loan remained at 4.6%. The loan was to be repaid in four semi-annual payments of
$500,000, commencing on March 31, 2007, and 40 semi-annual payments of $808,798, commencing on
March 31, 2009, with the final payment to be made on May 31, 2028.

Effective May 31, 2009, the Port Corporation loan was restructured again. Additional unpaid
interest through June 1, 2010 of $811,673 was capitalized into the loan balance. The new interest rate was
set at 3.99%, and the loan is to be repaid in 37 semi-annual installments of $813,870, commencing on
March 31, 2011, with the final payment on March 31, 2029.

Due to the multiple restructures and the uncertainty of future payments, the Authority recorded a
loss of $20,297,835 for the year ended June 30, 2010 on the impairment of the loan receivable. This
however, will not impede the Authorities ability to receive future loan repayments.

In fiscal 2011, the Port Corporation resumed payments as scheduled. As a result the TTF received a
payment of $1.63 million, of which $.84 million was interest and $.79 million was recorded as a collection
on the previously written-off loan.

Current Financial Plan

The revenue sources described earlier are combined with the proceeds of the Transportation System
Revenue Bonds and support from the federal government to fund the Department's total transportation
budget - both operating and capital. The Department updates its six-year financial plan concurrent with the
preparation of the annual operating and capital budgets.

The current financial plan assumes that the existing sources of revenues will meet projections
without any further increases in the rates.

In the event revenues or other sources fall short of projections, the Department will either request
additional revenues from the General Assembly, reduce the transportation program or a combination of
both.

The table on the following page shows the anticipated financing plan assuming that the full
implementation of the proposed Capital Transportation Program is approved by the State.
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Base Financial Plan - Capital

March 2012 DEFAC Spend Plan - FINAL

($ in 000s)
Sources of Funds 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Existing Pledged Revenue
1-95 Tolls & Concessions 115,800 117,100 119,400 121,700 124,100 126,700 129,200
Motor Fuel Tax Admin. 113,200 115,500 117,800 120,200 122,600 125,100 127,600
DMV Fees 139,200 143,300 147,600 152,100 156,700 161,400 166,300
Interest Income 3.500 4.000 5,000 5,000 5.000 5,500 6.000
Total Pledged Revenue 371,700 379,900 389,800 399,000 408,400 418,700 429,100
Non-Pledged Revenues
SR 1 Tolls 44,800 45,500 46,300 46,900 47,500 48,100 48,700
Escheat 40,000 20,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
DE Transit (Farebox, FTA, & Other) 17,687 18,785 19,388 19,776 20,171 20,575 20,986
Port of Wilmington - Refinancing 1,628 1,628 1,628 1,628 1,628 1,628 1,628
Build America Bond Subsidy Payment 1,377 1,298 1,298 1,298 1,298 1,298 1,298
Other Transportation Revenue 12,100 12,200 12,300 12.400 12,500 12,600 12,700
Total Non-Pledged Revenue 117,592 99,411 120,914 122,002 123,097 124,201 125,312
Total Sources of Funds 489,292 479,311 510,714 521,002 531,497 542,901 554,412
Uses of Funds
Debt Service
DTA Bonds & Notes 126,309 121,965 116,821 111,569 105,352 101,236 96,090
Senior Bonds 126,309 121,965 116,821 111,569 105,352 101,236 96,090
New Debt Service 0 0 2,575 2,575 2,575 2,575 2,575
State G.O. Bonds 377 213 153 108 0 0 0
Total Debt Service 126,686 122,178 119,549 114,252 107,927 103,811 98,665
Operations
Department Operations 141,818 142,730 147,012 151,422 155,965 160,644 165,463
Delaware Transit Corp. Operations 95.203 97,742 102,629 107,761 113.149 118,806 124,746
Total Operations 237,021 240,472 249,641 259,183 269,114 279,450 290,210
Total Uses of Funds Before Capital 363,707 362,650 369,190 373,435 377,040 383,261 388,874
State Resources Available for Capital 125,585 116,661 141,524 147,567 154,457 159,640 165,538
Beginning Capital Cash Balance 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Carry-over Encumbrance Balance 123,218 63,803 0 0 0 0 0
Federal Funds 195,000 258,011 281,125 227,836 203,561 158,968 141,743
Bond Proceeds 0 0 30,000 0 0 0 0
Total Funds Available for Capital Expenditures 463,803 458,475 472,649 395,403 378,018 338,608 327,281
Less:
State Capital Expenditures 61,782 116,661 171,524 147,567 154,457 159,640 165,538
Carry-over Encumbrance Spend 123,218 63,803 0 0 0 0 0
Federal Capital Expenditures 184,570 247,029 270,928 216,066 192,575 147,974 130,754
GARVEE Debt-Service (Federal) 10,430 10,982 10,198 11,770 10,986 10,994 10,989
Total Capital Spending 380,000 438,475 452,649 375,403 358,018 318,608 307,281
Ending Capital Cash 83,803 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
GARVEE Bond Proceeds 111,166 72,166 0 0 0 0 0
GARVEE Capital Expenditures 39,000 72,166 0 0 0 0 0
GARVEE Ending Capital Cash 72,166 0 0 0 0 0 0
Pay Go Revenue 125,585 116,661 141,524 147,567 154,457 159,640 165,538
State Capital 185,000 180,464 171,524 147,567 154,457 159,640 165,538
Pay Go Percentage 67.9% 64.6% 82.5% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Additional Senior Bond Test 2.92 3.08 3.22 3.45 3.74 3.98 4.29

]

Even though escheat revenues are legislated at $40 million annually, the Base Plan presented includes $20 million in escheat revenues in fiscal 2013 to reflect the
Governor’s Recommended Budget which is proposing a reduced payment in fiscal 2013.
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BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM

The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), will act as securities depository
for the 2012 Bonds. The 2012 Bonds will be issued as fully-registered bonds registered in the name of Cede
& Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. One fully-registered certificate will be issued for each maturity of the 2012 Bonds,
each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under
the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a
member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York
Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of
U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from
over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants™) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates
the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited
securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’
accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants
include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations,
and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing
Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation
and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by
the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both
U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that
clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly
(“Indirect Participants”). The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of the 2012 Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct
Participants, which will receive a credit for the 2012 Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of
each actual purchaser of each 2011 Bond (“Beneficial Owner”™) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and
Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their
purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of
the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the
2012 Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting
on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership
interests in the 2012 Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the 2012 Bonds is
discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all 2012 Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested
by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of 2012 Bonds with DTC and their registration in the
name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC
has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the 2012 Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the
identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such 2012 Bonds are credited, which may or may not
be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account
of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements
as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of 2012 Bonds may wish to take certain steps to
augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the 2012 Bonds, such as
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redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example, Beneficial
Owners of 2012 Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the 2012 Bonds for their benefit has
agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish
to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly
to them.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the
2012 Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures. Under its usual
procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to an issuer as soon as possible after the record date. The
Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose
accounts the 2012 Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus
Proxy).

Payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on the 2012 Bonds will be made to Cede & Co.,
or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to
credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from
the Authority or the Trustee, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s
records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and
customary practices, as is the case with 2012 Bonds held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or
registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, Authority or
the Trustee, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on the 2012 Bonds to Cede & Co. (or such other
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of Authority or
the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and
disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect
Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the 2012 Bonds at any
time by giving reasonable notice to the Authority or its agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a
successor depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The Authority may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or
a successor securities depository). In that event, bond certificates will be prepared and delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained
from DTC, and the Authority takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

LITIGATION

Except as hereinafter described, there is no litigation pending or, to the knowledge of the Authority,
threatened in any court or administrative body, questioning the enforceability of the Act, the statutes
imposing the motor fuel taxes, the motor vehicle document fees, the motor vehicle registration fees, the
Miscellaneous Transportation Revenue or the transfer of that revenue to the Authority, the existence of the
Authority, the validity of the 2012 Bonds, or any proceedings of the Authority taken with respect to the
issuance or sale thereof, or seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the 2012
Bonds or questioning the power of the Authority to collect, pledge and assign revenue of the Delaware
Turnpike, or to pay the 2012 Bonds as provided in the Agreement.

The Authority continues to review the impact, if any, of judicial decisions on TTF revenue sources.
The Authority plans to take whatever action may be required with respect to any required revisions to the
TTF revenue and expenditure plan, with the end result that there will be a revenue neutral impact on the
TTEF. In the event that any such changes require approval by the State, the Authority expects that the State
will enact any such changes requested by the Authority.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS AND TRANSPORTATION CONSULTANT

The financial statements of the Authority's TTF for fiscal years ending June 30, 2011 and June 30,
2010 included as APPENDIX A to this Official Statement have been examined by KPMG LLP, independent
auditors, whose report thereon appears therein. KPMG LLP, the Authority’s independent auditor, has not
been engaged to perform and has not performed, since the date of its report included herein, any procedures
on the financial statements addressed in that report. KPMG LLP has not performed any procedures relating
to this Official Statement.

The Transportation Consultant's Report, prepared by SYSTRAmobility, previously known as
CITILBAS, Inc., including an Update Letter, prepared by Stantec Consulting Services, Inc., are included as
APPENDIX E to this Official Statement. The Transportation Consultant's Report is based on historical data
provided by the Authority and the Department of Public Safety and their own forecasts of population, and
certain other factors. This report has been included in this Official Statement in reliance on the
Transportation Consultant’s knowledge and experience in examining and projecting such matters.
Unanticipated events and circumstances may occur which would affect the forecasts contained therein.
Therefore, the actual results achieved during the forecast period may vary materially from those forecasted.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

Public Financial Management, Inc. has served as financial advisor to the Authority in connection
with the sale of the 2012 Bonds.

VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL COMPUTATIONS

BondResource Partners, LP, a subsidiary of PFM Asset Management LLC, will verify from the
information provided to them the mathematical accuracy as of the date of the closing on the 2012 Bonds of
(1) the computations contained in the provided schedules to determine that the anticipated receipts from the
securities and cash deposits listed in such schedules, to be held in escrow, will be sufficient to pay, when
due, the principal, interest and call premium payment requirements of the refunded bonds, and (2) the
computations of yield on both the securities and the 2012 Bonds contained in the provided schedules used
by Bond Counsel in its determination that the interest on the 2012 Bonds is exempt from tax. BondResource
Partners, LP will express no opinion on the assumptions provided to them, nor as to the exemption from
taxation of the interest on the 2012 Bonds.

TRUSTEE

The Trustee for the holders of the 2012 Bonds, as well as the Authority's outstanding Senior Bonds,
is Wilmington Trust Company. Wilmington Trust Company, as escrow agent, holds funds for the payment
of certain defeased indebtedness of the Authority.

RATINGS

The 2012 Bonds have been given a rating of “AA+" by Standard and Poor’s Corporation and “Aa2”
by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. Reference is made to the manuals of both rating agencies for a complete
description of its rating procedures and other rating categories.

A bond rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold bonds. The rating represents a judgment
as to the likelihood of timely payment of the 2012 Bonds according to their terms but does not address the
likelihood of redemption or other payments of the 2012 Bonds prior to maturity. There is no assurance that
any of the ratings will remain in effect for any given period of time or that they will not be revised
downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating agency if, in its judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any
such downward revision or withdrawal of any of the ratings may have an adverse affect on the market price
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or marketability of the 2012 Bonds. Any desired explanation of the significance of such ratings should be
obtained from the rating agency furnishing the same.

LEGALITY FOR INVESTMENT

The Act provides that the 2012 Bonds are securities in which all officers of political subdivisions,
administrative departments, boards and commissions of the State, all banks, bankers, savings banks and
institutions, building and loan associations, trust companies, savings and loan associations, investment
companies and other persons carrying on a banking business; all insurance companies, insurance
associations and other persons carrying on an insurance business; all administrators, executors, guardians,
trustees and other fiduciaries; and all other persons whatsoever who now are or may hereafter be authorized
to invest in bonds or other obligations of the State, may properly and legally invest any funds, including
capital, belonging to them or within their control.

The Act also provides that the 2012 Bonds may be properly and legally deposited with and received
by any officer of the State, or of any political subdivision or agency of the State, for any purpose for which
the deposit of bonds or other obligations of the State is now, or may hereafter be, authorized by law.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Rule 15¢2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Rule”) prohibits an
underwriter from purchasing or selling municipal securities, such as the 2012 Bonds, unless it has
determined that the issuer of such securities and/or other persons deemed to be material “obligated persons”
(each, a “MOP”’) have committed to provide (i) on an annual basis, certain financial information, including
financial information and operating data (“Annual Reports™), to each Nationally Recognized Municipal
Securities Information Repository (a “NRMSIR”) and the relevant state information repository (if any) and
(i1) notice of various events described in the Rule, if material (“Event Notices”), to each NRMSIR or the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”) and to any such state information repository.

The Authority will agree with the purchasers of the 2012 Bonds, by executing a supplement to the
Continuing Disclosure Agreement executed in connection with the issuance of its 1997 Series Bonds prior to
the issuance of the 2012 Bonds, to provide Annual Reports with respect to itself to each NRMSIR and to
any Delaware information repository that is formed. The Authority has determined that there currently is no
other MOP for purposes of the Rule. The Authority will provide Event Notices to the MSRB and to any
Delaware information repository.

On December 5, 2008, the Securities and Exchange Commission amended the Rule by replacing the
four NRMSIRs with the Electronic Municipal Market Access System (“EMMA”) created by the MSRB
beginning July 1, 2009. Pursuant to the supplement to the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Authority
shall file, or cause to be filed, with EMMA any filing required or permitted under the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement

Effective December 1, 2010, the Securities and Exchange Commission amended the Rule to, among
other things, make certain changes to the type of events that give rise to Event Notices. The Supplement to
Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “2010 Supplement”), which was executed prior to the issuance of the
Authority's Transportation System Senior Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, amends the Authority's Continuing
Disclosure Agreement so that it is compliant with the amended Rule. A form of the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement, together with the 2010 Supplement thereto, appears as APPENDIX C to this Official Statement.

The Authority has complied with all of its obligations under continuing disclosure agreements to which
it is a party in each of the past five years.
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TAX MATTERS
Tax Exemption-Opinion of Bond Counsel

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™) contains provisions relating to the
tax-exempt status of interest on obligations issued by governmental entities which apply to the 2012 Bonds.
These provisions include, but are not limited to, requirements relating to the use and investment of the
proceeds of the 2012 Bonds and the rebate of certain investment earnings derived from such proceeds to the
United States Treasury Department on a periodic basis. These and other requirements of the Code must be
met by the Authority subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the 2012 Bonds in order for interest thereon
to be and remain excludable from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation. The Authority has
made covenants to comply with such requirements.

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the 2012 Bonds is not includable in gross income for
purposes of federal income taxation under existing statutes, regulations, rulings and court decisions. The
opinion of Bond Counsel is subject to the condition that the Authority comply with all applicable federal
income tax law requirements that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the 2012 Bonds in order
that interest thereon continues to be excluded from gross income. Failure to comply with certain of such
requirements could cause the interest on the 2012 Bonds to be so includable in gross income retroactive to
the date of issuance of the 2012 Bonds. The Authority has covenanted to comply with all such
requirements. Interest on the 2012 Bonds is not treated as an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the
Code for purposes of the individual and corporate alternative minimum taxes; however, under the Code, to
the extent that interest on the 2012 Bonds is a component of a corporate holder’s “adjusted current
earnings”, a portion of that interest may be subject to the corporate alternative minimum tax. Bond Counsel
expresses no opinion regarding other federal tax consequences relating to the 2012 Bonds or the receipt of
interest thereon. See discussion of “Alternative Minimum Tax”, “Branch Profits Tax”, “S Corporations with
Passive Investment Income”, “Social Security and Railroad Retirement Benefits”, “Deduction for Interest
Paid by Financial Institutions to Purchase or Carry Tax-Exempt Obligations”, “Property or Casualty
Insurance Company” and “Accounting Treatment of Amortizable Bond Premium” below.

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law, the 2012 Bonds, the interest on the 2012 Bonds
and their transfer shall be exempt from taxation by The State of Delaware and its political subdivisions,
except for estate, inheritance or gift taxes imposed by The State of Delaware.

Alternative Minimum Tax

The Code includes, for purposes of the corporate alternative minimum tax, a preference item
consisting of, generally, seventy-five percent of the excess of a corporation’s “adjusted current earnings”
over its “alternative minimum taxable income” (computed without regard to this particular preference item
and the alternative tax net operating loss deduction). Thus, to the extent that tax-exempt interest (including
interest on the 2012 Bonds) is a component of a corporate holder’s “adjusted current earnings”, a portion of
that interest may be subject to an alternative minimum tax.

Branch Profits Tax
Under the Code, foreign corporations engaged in a trade or business in the United States will be
subject to a “branch profits tax” equal to thirty percent (30%) of the corporation's “dividend equivalent

amount” for the taxable year. The term “dividend equivalent amount” includes interest on tax-exempt
obligations.

S Corporations with Passive Investment Income

Section 1375 of the Code imposes a tax on the income of certain small business corporations for
which an S Corporation election is in effect, and that have “passive investment income”. For purposes of
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Section 1375 of the Code, the term “passive investment income” includes interest on the 2012 Bonds. This
tax applies to an S Corporation for a taxable year if the S Corporation has Subchapter C earnings and profits
at the close of the taxable year and has gross receipts, more than twenty-five percent (25%) of which are
“passive investment income”. Thus, interest on the 2012 Bonds may be subject to federal income taxation
under Section 1375 of the Code if the requirements of that provision are met.

Social Security and Railroad Retirement Benefits

Under Section 86 of the Code, certain Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits (the
“benefits”) may be includable in gross income. The Code provides that interest on tax-exempt obligations
(including interest on the 2012 Bonds) is included in the calculation of “modified adjusted gross income” in
determining whether a portion of the benefits received are to be includable in gross income of individuals.

Deduction for Interest Paid by Financial Institutions to Purchase or Carry Tax-Exempt Obligations

The Code, subject to limited exceptions not applicable to the 2012 Bonds, denies the interest
deduction for indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry tax-exempt obligations, such as the
2012 Bonds. With respect to banks, thrift institutions and other financial institutions, the denial to such
institutions is one hundred percent (100%) for interest paid on funds allocable to the 2012 Bonds and any
other tax-exempt obligations acquired after August 7, 1986.

Property or Casualty Insurance Company

The Code also provides that a property or casualty insurance company may also incur a reduction,
by a specified portion of its tax-exempt interest income, of its deduction for losses incurred.

Accounting Treatment of Amortizable Bond Premium

All of the 2012 Bonds are hereinafter referred to as the “Premium Bonds”. An amount equal to the
excess of the initial public offering price of a Premium Bond set forth on the cover page over its stated
redemption price at maturity constitutes premium on such Premium Bond. A purchaser of a Premium Bond
must amortize any premium over such Premium Bond's term using constant yield principles, based on the
purchaser's yield to maturity. As premium is amortized, the purchaser's basis in such Premium Bond is
reduced by a corresponding amount, resulting in an increase in the gain (or decrease in the loss) to be
recognized for federal income tax purposes upon a sale or disposition of such Premium Bond prior to its
maturity. Even though the purchaser's basis is reduced, no federal income tax deduction is allowed.

Purchasers of Premium Bonds, whether at the time of initial issuance or subsequent thereto, should
consult their own tax advisors with respect to the determination and treatment of premium for federal
income tax purposes and with respect to state and local tax consequences of owning Premium Bonds.

APPROVAL OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The authorization and issuance of the 2012 Bonds are subject to the issuance of a legal opinion as to
validity by Bond Counsel, Saul Ewing LLP, Wilmington, Delaware, whose legal opinion will be available at
the time of the delivery of the 2012 Bonds. A Deputy Attorney General of the State will approve certain
legal matters for the Authority.

The agreement of the Authority with the holders of the 2012 Bonds is set forth in full in the
Agreement, and neither any advertisement of the 2012 Bonds nor this Official Statement is to be construed
as constituting an agreement with the purchasers of the 2012 Bonds. So far as any statements are made in
this Official Statement involving estimates, projections or matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so
stated, they are intended merely as such and not as representations of fact.
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The execution and distribution of this Official Statement by the undersigned and its distribution to
prospective purchasers has been duly authorized by the Authority.

DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

By:

Secretary of Department of Transportation

/s/

Director of Finance

/s/

Transportation Trust Fund Administrator

/s/
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APPENDIX A

Delaware Transportation Authority
Transportation Trust Fund
General Purpose Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2011
and June 30, 2010
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DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2011 and 2010

This section of the Delaware Transportation Authority (the Authority) Transportation Trust Fund’s (the Trust
Fund) annual financial statements presents our discussion and analysis of the Trust Fund’s financial performance
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Background

In 1987, to facilitate the Authority’s development of a unified transportation system in the State of Delaware
(the State) and to take advantage of the Authority’s broad financing powers, the Trust Fund was created to
consolidate and dedicate transportation-related revenue to transportation projects and to provide a flexible
mechanism to handle the increasing funding requirements over time for all transportation projects in the State.
The Trust Fund is the State’s financing vehicle for transportation, operating, and capital expenditures. Funding
for such expenditures is derived from bond proceeds, excess Trust Fund revenue, and cash balances.

The Trust Fund has pledged the following revenue to secure their outstanding bonds: Motor Fuel Taxes,
Delaware Turnpike Tolls and Concessions, Motor Vehicle Document and Registration Fees, Miscellaneous
Transportation Revenue, including operator license and titling fees, and investment earnings. Route 1 (SR-1) toll
road revenue and certain miscellaneous revenues, including transfers from the State of Delaware General Fund,
have not been pledged and, therefore, are not used to secure the Trust Fund’s bonds.

Financial Highlights

. 1-95 tolls decreased by $3.5 million to $115.9 million, a 2.9% decrease over fiscal year 2010. This was
primarily due to reduced traffic volume as a result of high fuel prices. SR-1 revenues remained virtually
flat for fiscal year 2011 as compared to fiscal year 2010.

. Motor vehicle document fee revenue increased by $9.9 million to $68.3 million, a 17.0% increase over
fiscal year 2010. This was primarily due to increased auto sales as economic conditions began to improve.
Document fee revenues increased by 3.9% from fiscal year 2009 to fiscal year 2010 as a result of fee
increases and increased auto sales resulting from the federal Car Allowance Rebate System program.

. Motor vehicle registration fee revenue increased by $2.7 million to $47.2 million, a 6.1% increase over
fiscal year 2010. This follows an increase of 2.8% from fiscal year 2009 to fiscal year 2010. Both increases
were primarily the result of increased auto sales.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The financial section of this annual report consists of five parts: 1) management’s discussion and analysis (this
section), 2)the basic financial statements, 3) notes to the financial statements, 4)required supplementary
information, and 5) additional information.

The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the Trust Fund’s overall
financial status. The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of other supplementary
information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements.

1 (Continued)
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DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2011 and 2010

The Trust Fund’s financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units on an accrual basis. Under this basis,
revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses are recognized in the period in which
they are incurred, and depreciation of assets is recognized in the statements of revenues, expenses, and change in
net assets.

Financial Analysis of the Trust Fund
Balance Sheets

The Trust Fund’s total assets increased 7.1% to $1,646.3 million at June 30, 2011, compared to $1,537.3 million
at June 30, 2010, and $1,483.1 million at June 30, 2009. Total liabilities increased 2.5% to $1,303.1 million at
June 30, 2011, compared to $1,271.2 million at June 30, 2010, and $1,230.0 million at June 30, 2009. Net assets
at June 30, 2011 increased 29.0% to $343.2 million, compared to $266.1 million at June 30, 2010, and
$253.1 million at June 30, 2009.

Transportation trust fund’s net assets

Percentage Percentage
change change
2011 2010 2009 2011-2010 2010-2009
(Dollars in millions)

Current assets $ 403.2 339.2 295.2 18.9% 14.9%

Capital assets 1,165.2 1,136.0 1,107.8 2.6 2.5
Other noncurrent assets 77.9 62.1 80.1 25.4 (22.5)

Total assets $ 1,646.3 1,537.3 1,483.1 7.1 3.7
Current liabilities $ 133.6 127.3 132.2 4.9% B. 1%

Revenue bonds payable 1,133.3 1,110.5 1,068.5 2.1 39

Other noncurrent liabilities 36.2 33.4 29.3 8.4 14.0

Total liabilities $ 1,303.1 1,271.2 1,230.0 2.5 33

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of debt $ 62.2 40.2 11.0 54.7% 265.5%
Restricted 170.8 159.9 164.0 6.8 2.5
Unrestricted 110.2 66.0 78.1 67.0 (15.5)

Total net assets $ 343.2 266.1 253.1 29.0 5.1

The increase in current assets is attributed to the larger cash and cash equivalents balance as a result of delays in
the capital program causing a decrease in capital spending during the fiscal year 2011. During fiscal year 2010,
the increase is attributed to unspent bond proceeds from the Grant Anticipation Revenue Vehicle (GARVEE)
bond issuance, which caused larger investment balances. The increase in other noncurrent assets in 2011 is due to
holding longer term investments, while the decrease in other noncurrent assets in 2010 is primarily due to
recording a loss of $20.3 million for the Trust Fund’s loan to the Diamond State Port Corporation. The small
increase in liabilities during fiscal year 2011 is primarily attributed to escrow deposits relating to the GARVEE
bond debt-service and an increase in revenue bonds payable from the issuance of Series 2010A and 2010B bonds
during 2011.

2 (Continued)
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TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2011 and 2010

Change in Net Assets

Total net assets at June 30, 2011 were $343.2 million, compared to $266.1 million at June 30, 2010, and
$253.1 million at June 30, 2009. Total operating revenues increased 2.8% to $425.6 million for fiscal year 2011,
compared to $414.0 million for fiscal year 2010, and $415.4 million for fiscal year 2009. Total operating
expenses decreased 0.8% to $340.5 million for fiscal year 2011, compared to $343.1 million for fiscal year 2010,

and $399.1 million for fiscal year 2009.

Transportation trust fund’s net assets

Percentage Percentage
change change
2011 2010 2009 2011-2010 2010-2009
(Dollars in millions)
Operating revenues:

Turnpike revenue $ 115.9 119.4 121.2 2.9)% (1.5)%
Motor fuel tax 113.7 112.9 114.6 0.7 (1.5)

Motor vehicle document fee 68.3 58.4 56.2 17.0 3.9

Motor vehicle registration fee 47.2 44.5 43.3 6.1 2.8

Other motor vehicle revenue 24.6 22.8 22.5 7.9 1.3
International Fuel Tax Agreement 2.9 2.9 4.9 0.0 (40.8)

Toll revenue — SR-1 44 4 45.5 44.5 2.4) 2.2
Miscellaneous 8.6 7.6 8.2 13.2 (7.3)
Total operating revenues 425.6 414.0 415.4 2.8 (0.3)

Operating expenses:

Toll operations expenses 16.6 17.9 16.9 (7.3) 5.9
Capital preservation and operations 250.2 251.5 310.4 0.5) (19.0)
DTC operations 73.5 73.5 71.6 0.0 2.7
Depreciation 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0
Total operating expenses 340.5 343.1 399.1 (0.8) (14.0)

Operating income (loss) 85.1 70.9 16.3 20.0 335.0

Nonoperating expenses — net (35.2) (61.3) (34.8) (42.6) 76.1
Transfers 27.2 3.4 3.2 700.0 6.2
Change in net assets 77.1 13.0 (15.3) 493.1 (185.0)
Total net assets, beginning of year 266.1 253.1 268.4 5.1 (5.7
Total net assets, end of year $ 343.2 266.1 253.1 29.0 5.1

Despite the continued poor economy and spikes in fuel prices, several revenue categories increased over last
fiscal year. All Department of Motor Vehicle revenue categories experienced revenue growth for the second
straight year, driven primarily by increased auto sales. Registration fee revenue increased by 6.1%, document fee
revenue increased by 17.0% and the “other” motor vehicle revenue category grew by 7.9%. These increases were

partially offset by a decrease in turnpike revenues of 2.9% as a result of decreased traffic on [-95.

Total operating expenses for fiscal year 2011 were relatively flat as compared to 2010. Operating expenses
decreased 14.0% from 2009 to 2010 as a result of reduced capital preservation spending.
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DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2011 and 2010

Net nonoperating expenses for fiscal year 2011 decreased by 42.6%, as compared to an increase of 76.1% during
2010. These changes were primarily as a result of recording a one-time loss of $20.3 million for the Trust Fund’s
loan to the Diamond State Port Corporation during 2010.

During fiscal year 2011, the following transfers were received from the State’s General Fund: $24.0 million in
support was received after being suspended in fiscal years 2008, 2009 and 2010, $0.3 million collected by the
Division of Revenue from motor vehicle dealer fees and $2.9 million in General Fund support for the Department
of Motor Vehicles (DMV). In fiscal year 2010, the Division of Revenue transfer was also $0.3 million and the
DMV support transfer was $2.8 million. In fiscal year 2010, the Trust Fund also had a one-time transfer of
$0.3 million from the Department of Transportation (the Department).

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2011, the Trust Fund had invested $1,168.7 million in capital assets, including roads, bridges,
buildings, land, and equipment for Delaware’s two toll roads. Net of accumulated depreciation, the Trust Fund’s
net capital assets at June 30, 2011 totaled $1,165.2 million. This amount represents a net increase (including
additions and disposals, net of depreciation) of $29.2 million, primarily for the US 301 project.

The State is using the “modified approach” for determining condition assessments on their roads and bridges.
The modified approach requires that the State initially set a percentage benchmark for maintaining their
infrastructure in good or better condition and report at least every three years on their condition assessments.

It is the Department’s policy to maintain at least 85% of its highway system at a fair or better condition rating
and 75% of its bridge system at a good or better condition rating as follows:

The condition of the road pavement is measured using the Overall Pavement Condition (OPC) system, which is
based on the extent and severity of various pavement distresses that are visually observed. The OPC system uses
a measurement scale that is based on a condition index ranging from 0 for poor pavement to 5 for pavement in
excellent condition.

The condition of the bridges is measured using the “Bridge Condition Rating” (BCR), which is based on the
Federal Highway Administration’s (FHWA) Coding Guide, “Recording and Coding Guide for the Structure
Inventory and Appraisal of the Nation’s Bridges.” The BCR uses a measurement scale that is based on a
condition index ranging from 0 to 4 for substandard bridges to 9 for bridges in perfect condition. For reporting
purposes, substandard bridges are classified as those with a rating of 4 or less. The good or better condition
bridges are taken as those with ratings of 6 to 9, with 5 being assessed a fair rating.

The Department performs condition assessments of eligible infrastructure assets at least every three years.

At December 31, 2009, 99.8% of the Trust Fund’s roadway condition assessments were in the fair or better
category, a 7.9% increase over 2008. 4.69 miles, or 3.9%, of the roadways were unrated due to construction in
2008. In 2009, all lane miles were rated. No roadway condition assessment was performed at December 31,
2010. At December 31, 2010, 92.3% of the bridge structures were in the good or better category, a small decrease
from the prior year at 93.2%, and 93.4% of the bridge deck ratings were in the good or better category, down
from 96.6% in the prior year.

4 (Continued)
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DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2011 and 2010

Debt Administration

Transportation Systems Revenue Bonds are issued with the approval of the State and the State’s Bond Issuing
Officers (the Governor, the Secretary of Finance, the Secretary of State, and the State Treasurer) to finance
improvements to the State’s transportation systems. Approval by the General Assembly of the State is not
required for the Authority to issue bonds to refund any of its bonds provided that a present value debt service
savings is achieved in such refunding. The sales must comply with the rules and regulations of the United States
Treasury Department and the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

At June 30, 2011, the Authority had $1,210.9 million in revenue bonds outstanding, a 2.3% increase from
June 30, 2010. During fiscal year 2011, the Authority issued senior revenue bonds for $47.7 million and senior
revenue Build America Bonds (BAB) for $72.1 million. The $47.7 million issuance provided for the advanced
refunding of $20.6 million in existing bonds and $27.1 million in new money. Of the thirteen outstanding senior
bond issues, all insured bonds are rated AAA by S&P and Aaa by Moody’s; and the uninsured bonds are rated
AA+ and Aa2, respectively. The GARVEE Bond, 2010 Series, is uninsured and is rated AA and Aa2 by S&P
and Moody’s respectively.

Next Year’s Budget

The Department’s fiscal year 2012 Operating Annual Budget adopted by the General Assembly in June 2011
totals $354.0 million and the fiscal year 2012 Capital Improvements Act totals $219.5 million in State-authorized
funds. The Capital Improvements Act authorizes funding of the following improvements: $165.9 million of Road
System, $20.1 million of Grants and Allocations, $5.2 million of Transit System, and $28.3 million for Support
System. The spending of these capital authorizations will occur over several years. The Capital Transportation
Plan (CTP) spending forecast for fiscal year 2012 is $534.6 million, inclusive of $298.9 and $235.7 million in
state and federal funds, respectively. The State forecast includes $47.8 million in GARVEE spending.

Contacting the Trust Fund’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide bondholders, patrons, and other interested parties with a general
overview of the Trust Fund’s finances and to demonstrate the Trust Fund’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Delaware
Department of Transportation, Finance Unit, P.O. Box 778, Dover, DE 19903.
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1601 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2499

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors

Delaware Transportation Authority
Transportation Trust Fund

Dover, Delaware

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of the State of Delaware Transportation Trust Fund
(TTF), a subsidiary of Delaware Transportation Authority, which is a blended component unit of the State
of Delaware, as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the related statements of revenue, expenses and changes in
net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of TTF
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the TTF’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

As discussed in note 1, the financial statements present only the State of Delaware Transportation Trust
Fund and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the State of Delaware, as of
June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the changes in its financial position for the years then ended in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the State of Delaware Transportation Trust Fund as of June 30, 2011 and
2010, and the changes in its financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information for governments that use
the modified approach for infrastructure assets on pages 1 through 5 and 30 through 31 are not a required
part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise TTF’s financial statements. The additional information, Balance Sheet in accordance with Trust
Agreement, Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets in accordance with Trust
Agreement, Statement of Cash Flows in accordance with Trust Agreement, Schedules of Revenue Bonds

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership,
the U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative
("KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.
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Outstanding (June 30, 2011 and 2010), Statements of Operating Revenues and Expenses — Expressway
Operations/Toll Administration, Schedule of Cash Balance Expenditures Compared to Budget —
Expressway Operations/Toll Administration, and Schedule of Revenue Bond Coverage, presented on

pages 33 through 43 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements.

KPMe P

November 15, 2011
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DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Balance Sheets

June 30, 2011 and 2010

Assets 2011 2010
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents:
Unrestricted 17,501,798 9,325,259
Restricted 64,042,007 268

Investments — at fair value:
Unrestricted 127,815,239 87,592,054
Restricted 185,341,783 234,806,892
Accrued interest receivable 694,941 487,572
Accounts receivable 7,563,858 6,747,093
Bond issuance costs — net of accumulated amortization 263,205 226,029
Total current assets 403,222,831 339,185,167

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Infrastructure and land

1,160,554,034

1,131,204,770

Buildings and land improvements 8,136,689 8,136,689
1,168,690,723 1,139,341,459
Less: accumulated depreciation 3,489,513 3,297,296

Capital assets

Investments — at fair value:

1,165,201,210

1,136,044,163

Unrestricted 12,749,614 10,157,658

Restricted 62,906,082 49,798,310
Bond issuance costs — net of accumulated amortization

and current portion 2,182,781 2,101,043

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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1,243,039,687

1,198,101,174

$ 1,646,262,518

1,537,286,341
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DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Balance Sheets

June 30, 2011 and 2010

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll payable

Compensated absences payable

Customer toll deposits

Deferred revenue

Escrow deposits

General obligation bonds payable

Revenue bonds payable — net of deferred amounts on refunding
Bond issue premium — net of accumulated amortization
Interest payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences — net of current portion

Return of Federal Funds

General obligation bonds payable — net of current portion

Revenue bonds payable — net of deferred amounts on refunding
and current portion

Bond issue premium — net of accumulated amortization and
current portion

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

**DRAFT**v2

Invested in capital assets — net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2011 2010
6,086,929 11,005,265
446,758 403,501
53,629 59,705
10,788,734 7,330,574
— 2,983,466
3,612,108 —
346,503 663,330
75,960,451 71,489,182
7,952,314 7,548,149
28,400,631 25,800,022
133,648,057 127,283,194
260,051 307,090
5,999,719 —
441,481 787,984

1,133,291,243

29,450,245

1,110,523,675

32,296,132

1,169,442,739

1,143,914,881

1,303,090,796

1,271,198,075

62,163,744 40,209,286
170,782,875 159,900,968
110,225,103 65,978,012
343,171,722 266,088,266

$ 1,646,262,518

1,537,286,341
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DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Assets

Years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Operating revenues:

Pledged revenue:
Turnpike revenue
Motor fuel tax revenue
Motor vehicle document fee revenue
Motor vehicle registration fee revenue
Other motor vehicle revenue
International Fuel Tax Agreement revenue

Total pledged revenue

Toll revenue — Delaware SR-1
Property management revenue
Railway tolls

Traffic violations
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Expressways operations/toll administration and interstate operating
expenses

Expenses in accordance with Trust Agreement:
Transportation capital preservation and operations
Delaware Transit Corporation operations

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Pledged revenue — income from investments

Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments
Loss on note receivable

Bad debt recovery

Federal grants

Interest income

Interest expense

Excess of nonoperating expenses over nonoperating
revenues

Income before transfers

Transfer from Delaware Department of Transportation
Transfer from State General Fund

Change in net assets

Total net assets — beginning of year

Total net assets — end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2011 2010

115,895,081 119,398,945
113,753,475 112,888,804
68,347,132 58,353,219
47,171,633 44,524,380
24,586,694 22,815,458
2,859,019 2,850,720
372,613,034 360,831,526
44,429,312 45,502,245
411,321

1,270,118 924,356
4,348,989 3,353,947
2,942,043 2,941,008
425,603,496 413,964,403
16,594,681 17,888,822
250,162,909 251,461,465
73,524,092 73,525,141
192,217 194,012
340,473,899 343,069,440
85,129,597 70,894,963
3,573,314 2,302,349
(973,326) 563,456
(20,297,835)

788,914 —
7,801,534 —
38,089
(46,469,920) (43,920,676)
(35,279,484) (61,314,617)
49,850,113 9,580,346
289,380

27,233,343 3,111,602
77,083,456 12,981,328
266,088,266 253,106,938
343,171,722 266,088,266
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DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers $ 426,499,231 414,374,557
Payments to employees (6,060,388) (6,432,274)
Payments to suppliers (333,149,769) (338,952,992)
Net cash provided by operating activities 87,289,074 68,989,291
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers from State General Fund 27,233,343 3,111,602
Transfers from Delaware Department of Transportation — 289,380
Net cash provided by noncapital financing
activities 27,233,343 3,400,982
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Payments of revenue bond principal (71,760,000) (74,380,000)
Payment to escrow agent for refunding of revenue bonds (21,057,176) —
Proceeds from revenue bond sale 119,835,000 113,490,000
Payments of general obligation bond principal (663,330) (655,587)
Premium from revenue bond sale 6,988,431 12,455,754
Bond issuance costs from revenue bond sale (362,312) (926,913)
Federal reimbursement of debt service 7,801,534 —
Acquisition of capital assets (29,349,264) (28,432,107)

Payments of interest

Net cash used in capital and related

(52,835,053)

(50,971,923)

financing activities (41,402,170) (29,420,776)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Repayment on loan receivable — 1,294,686

Collection on loans previously written off
Escrow deposits received

788,914
2,374,302

(4,126,922,516)
4,119,491,386

(3,622,350,856)
3,573,707,668

Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments

Interest received 3,365,945 2,620,988
Net cash used in investing activities (901,969) (44,727,514)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 72,218,278 (1,758,017)
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year 9,325,527 11,083,544
Cash and cash equivalents — end of year $ 81,543,805 9,325,527
11 (Continued)
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Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in accounts payable
Decrease in accrued payroll and related expenses
Increase (decrease) in customer toll deposits
Decrease in deferred revenue
Increase in claims and judgments

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing and capital and related
financing activities:

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Loss on Diamond State Port Corporation loan

76

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Net cash provided by operating activities

12

DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

2011 2010

85,129,597 70,894,963
192,217 194,012
(816,765) 434,521
(4,918,336) (2,436,437)
(9,858) (73,401)
3,458,160 (24,367)
(1,745,660) —
5,999,719 —
87,289,074 68,989,291
— 20,297,835
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DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011 and 2010

Organization and Trust Agreements

(@)

(b)

Organization

The Delaware Transportation Authority (the Authority) is a body corporate and politic constituting
an instrumentality of the State of Delaware (the State). The Department of Transportation
(the Department) has overall responsibility for coordinating and developing comprehensive,
balanced transportation planning and policy for the State. The Authority assists in the
implementation of this policy and has the power to develop a unified system of air, water, vehicular,
and specialized transportation in the State, subject to oversight by the Department and the State.

To assist the Authority in financing a unified transportation system, the State created a
Transportation Trust Fund (the Trust Fund), within the Authority, under the Transportation Trust
Fund Act of 1987 (the TTF Act). The underlying purpose of the TTF Act and the Trust Fund is to
address the growing urgency to provide additional means to finance the maintenance and
development of the integrated highway, air, and water transportation system in the State for the
economic benefit of the State and for the welfare and safety of the users of the transportation system.
The primary funding of the Trust Fund comes from motor fuel taxes, motor vehicle document fees,
motor vehicle registration fees, and other transportation-related fees, which are imposed and
collected by the State and transferred to the Trust Fund. The State has irrevocably pledged, assigned,
and continuously appropriated to the Trust Fund these taxes and fees. The other major sources of
revenue for the Trust Fund are the Delaware Turnpike and the Delaware SR-1 Toll Roads, both of
which the Authority owns and operates. The Authority may apply Trust Fund revenue for
transportation projects, subject to the approval of the State, and may pledge any or all of this revenue
to secure financing for these projects.

The TTF Act also granted the Authority the power to issue bonds payable from and secured by the
revenues pledged and assigned to the Trust Fund.

Trust Agreements

The Trust Agreements in effect at June 30, 2011 and 2010 are the Motor Fuel Tax Revenue Bond
Trust Agreement (the Motor Fuel Tax Agreement), dated September 1, 1981, as supplemented, and
the Transportation Trust Fund Agreement (the Trust Agreement), dated August 1, 1988, as
supplemented.

The Trust Agreement is a bond indenture, intended to ensure payment to bondholders through assets
and revenues pledged to the Trust Fund. Pledged revenues fund certain accounts created under
Section 4.02 of the Trust Agreement and, to the extent those revenues are not needed for that
purpose, they are deposited, lien-free, to the Trust Fund Surplus pledged revenues and nonpledged
revenues of the Trust Fund may be used to fund the operations of the Department.

The provisions of the Motor Fuel Tax Agreement and the Trust Agreement govern the disposition of
revenues and other income and prescribe certain accounting practices, including the conditions for
transfer of monies among the various funds and accounts held by the Authority or the Trustee and
the use of such funds.

13 (Continued)
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DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011 and 2010

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e

(2

Basis of Accounting

The Authority operates as an enterprise fund. The Authority’s financial statements are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits, short-term money market securities, and other
deposits held by financial institutions, generally with original maturities of three months or less.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are expected to be fully collectible at June 30, 2011 and 2010, and accordingly,
a provision for uncollectible accounts has not been established.

Investments

Investments are recorded at their fair value. Investments at June 30, 2011 and 2010 consisted of
United States Government Obligations and Commercial Paper classified as “Qualified Investments”
by the Trust Agreement.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Pronouncements

The Authority has elected not to apply FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include buildings, land, land improvements, and infrastructure assets (such as
roads and bridges, which are normally immovable and of value only to the State), are reported in the
enterprise fund financial statements.

It is the policy of the State to capitalize land and buildings, regardless of cost, to capitalize
improvements to land and buildings when the costs of projects exceed $100,000, and to capitalize
infrastructure when the costs of individual items or projects exceed $1 million. The Trust Fund
follows the State’s policy with the exception of improvements to land and buildings, which are
capitalized, regardless of cost.

14 (Continued)
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DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011 and 2010

Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if original cost is not
determinable. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the time of the
donation. Buildings and land improvements are depreciated on a straight-line basis.

For assets not part of infrastructure, the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

For infrastructure, the State uses the “modified approach” to account for roads and bridges, as
provided by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments. Under
this process, the Authority does not record depreciation expense or the amounts expended in
connection with improvements to these assets capitalized, unless the improvements expand the
capacity or efficiency of an asset. Utilization of this approach requires the Authority to: 1) commit to
maintaining and preserving affected assets at or above a condition level established by the
Department, 2) maintain an inventory of the assets and perform periodic condition assessments to
ensure that the condition level is being maintained, and 3) make annual estimates of the amounts that
must be expended to maintain and preserve assets at the predetermined condition levels.

The Authority maintains two asset management systems, one for the roads and one for the bridges.
The Authority completes condition assessments on its roads and bridges at least every three years.

Buildings and land improvements are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Years
Assets:
Buildings 40
Land improvements 15
Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are absences for which Expressways Operations/Toll Administration
employees will be paid, such as vacation and sick leave. A liability for compensated absences that
are attributable to services already rendered and that are not contingent on a specific event that is
outside the control of the Expressways Operations/Toll Administration and its employees is accrued
as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services or
that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Expressways Operations/Toll
Administration and its employees are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered
or such events take place.

Bond Issue Premiums and Issuance Costs

Amortization of bond issue premiums/discounts and issuance costs is provided using the
effective-interest method over the life of the bond issue. Net amortization resulted in $9,186,755 and
$7,753,720 of reductions of interest expense in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

15 (Continued)
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DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011 and 2010

Revenues and Expenses

The Authority defines nonoperating revenues as investment and interest income, federal
reimbursements of debt service, and collections on loans previously written off. All other revenues
are derived from normal operations of the Authority. Nonoperating expenses are defined as interest
expense and loan losses. All other expenses are a result of normal operations.

Cash and Investments

(@)

(b)

Cash Management Policy and Investment Guidelines

The policy for the investment of the Authority’s funds is the responsibility of the Cash Management
Policy Board (the Board). The Board, created by State law, establishes policies for, and the terms,
conditions, and other matters relating to, the investment of all money belonging to the Authority.
Under the Board’s Statement of Objectives and Guidelines for the Investment of State of Delaware
Funds (the Policy), all deposits and investments of the Authority are categorized as “Authority
Accounts.” Investments of the Authority are further restricted to “Qualified Investments” as defined
in the Trust Agreement.

As defined by the Policy, the investment objectives of Authority Accounts include maximizing yield
and maintaining the safety of principal. At June 30, 2011 and 2010, investments of the Authority are
primarily in U.S. government Securities, U.S. government Agency Securities, and Commercial Paper
rated in the highest rating category by either Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s. All of these meet the
objectives defined by the Policy and are Qualified Investments in accordance with the Trust
Agreement.

The Policy is available on the Internet at http://delcode.delaware.gov/title29/c061/index.shtml.

Custodial Credit Risk
Deposits

The carrying amounts of the Authority’s deposits at June 30, 2011 and 2010 were $79,298,942 and
$9,325,527, respectively, and the bank balances were $78,287,983 and $8,397,210, respectively. The
differences between bank balances and carrying amounts resulted from outstanding checks and
deposits in transit. The entire bank balances at June 30, 2011 and 2010 of $78,287,983 and
$8,397,210, respectively, were covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the
Authority’s Trustee, in the Authority’s name, in accordance with the Policy and the Trust
Agreement. At June 30, 2010, federal depository insurance covered $250,000. At June 30, 2011,
non-interest bearing accounts had unlimited federal depository insurance coverage, and
interest-bearing accounts were covered by federal depository insurance for $250,000.

Investments

Investments of the Authority are stated at fair value, which approximates cost. At June 30, 2011 and
2010, all of the Authority’s investments were insured or registered with securities held by the
Authority or the counterparty in the Authority’s name.

16 (Continued)
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TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Interest Rate Risk

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011 and 2010

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely affect the
value of an investment. The Policy provides that maximum maturity for investments in Authority
accounts, at the time of purchase, shall not exceed ten years, except when it is prudent to match a
specific investment instrument with a known specific future liability, in which case the maturity
limitation shall match the maturity of the corresponding liability.

The following tables present a listing of directly held investments and related maturities.

June 30, 2011
Investment maturities (in years)
Investment type Fair value Less than 1 1-5 6-10
U.S. Government
Securities $ 29,973,391 17,589,824 11,200,135 1,183,432
U.S. Government
Agency Securities 123,509,799 60,337,517 33,988,759 29,183,523
Commercial Paper 235,329,528 235,229,681 99,847 —
$ 388,812,718 313,157,022 45,288,741 30,366,955
June 30, 2010
Investment maturities (in years)
Investment type Fair value Less than 1 1-5 6-10
U.S. Government
Securities $ 73,824,463 59,750,617 10,218,537 3,855,309
U.S. Government
Agency Securities 128,467,338 82,585,216 38,582,048 7,300,074
Commercial Paper 180,063,113 180,063,113 — —
$ 382,354914 322,398,946 48,800,585 11,155,383

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The Authority follows the Policy and the Trust Agreement by investing only in
authorized securities. The Authority’s general investment policy for credit risk is to apply the
prudent-person rule. Investments are made as a prudent person would be expected to act, with
discretion and intelligence, to seek reasonable income, preserve capital, and in general, avoid

speculative investments.

17
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DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011 and 2010

In addition, the Trust Agreement limits investments in Commercial Paper to those with a Moody’s
rating of P-1 or a Standard & Poor’s rating of A-1 for short-term investments. The Trust had
investments in Commercial Paper of $235,329,528 and $180,063,113 at June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. All Commercial Paper held was short-term and rated in accordance with the Trust
Agreement.

At June 30, 2011, the investments in U.S. government Agency Securities all carried the highest
rating by Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s, and investments in U.S. government Securities were
considered risk-free. Subsequent to June 30, 2011, Standard & Poor’s downgraded its credit rating
on U.S. government and Government Agency Securities from AAA to AA+. Standard & Poor’s was
the only major rating agency to downgrade U.S. government debt, and market participants have
continued to invest in U.S. securities. Management believes that the downgrade poses no additional
risk to the Trust Fund.

Investments in Excess of 5%

The following issuers have investments at fair value in excess of 5% of the investment portfolio at
June 30, 2011:

Federal National Mortgage Association $ 65,198,365 17%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 58,311,163 15
BNP Paribas Finance Inc 29,207,828 8
General Electric Capital Corp 22,610,223 6

Investment Commitments

The Authority has made no investment commitments as of June 30, 2011.

Accounts Receivable

Balances in accounts receivable were as follows at June 30:

2011 2010
Concessions $ 284,456 203,954
Railway tolls — 565,000
DMYV direct access 629,899 593,637
Traffic violations revenues 612,000 388,346
Miscellaneous revenues — 355,811
E-ZPass revenues 6,037,503 4,640,345
$ 7,563,858 6,747,093
18 (Continued)
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DELAWARE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011 and 2010

(5) Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
balance Increases Decreases balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Infrastructure $ 991,418421 29,349,264 — 1,020,767,685
Land 139,786,349 — — 139,786,349
$ 1,131,204,770 29,349,264 — 1,160,554,034
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings $ 7,972,765 — — 7,972,765
Land improvements 163,924 — — 163,924
8,136,689 — — 8,136,689
Less accumulated depreciation for
buildings and land improvements 3,297,296 192,217 — 3,489,513
Total capital assets
being depreciated, net  $ 4,839,393 (192,217) — 4,647,176

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
balance Increases Decreases balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Infrastructure $ 966,704,939 24,713,482 — 991,418,421
Land 136,357,104 3,429,245 — 139,786,349
$ 1,103,062,043 28,142,727 — 1,131,204,770
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings $ 7,683,385 289,380 — 7,972,765
Land improvements 163,924 — — 163,924
7,847,309 289,380 — 8,136,689
Less accumulated depreciation for
buildings and land improvements 3,103,284 194,012 — 3,297296
Total capital assets
being depreciated, net  $ 4,744,025 95,368 — 4,839,393

Depreciation expense was $192,217 and $194,012 for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due within
balance Additions Reductions balance one year
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds, gross $ 1,183,365,000 119,835,000 (92,320,000) 1,210,880,000 76,320,000
Deferred amount on refunding (1,352,143) (610,702) 334,539 (1,628,306) (359,549)
Revenue bonds, net 1,182,012,857 119,224,298 (91,985,461) 1,209,251,694 75,960,451
General obligation bonds 1,451,314 — (663,330) 787,984 346,503
Bond issue premium, net of
accumulated amortization 39,844,281 6,988,432 (9,430,154) 37,402,559 7,952,314
Return of Federal funds — 7,999,719 (2,000,000) 5,999,719 —
Compensated absences 366,795 — (53,115) 313,680 53,629
Long-term liabilities § 1,223,675,247 134,212,449 (104,132,060) 1,253,755,636 84,312,897
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:
Beginning Ending Due within
balance Additions Reductions balance one year
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds, gross $ 1,144,255,000 113,490,000 (74,380,000) 1,183,365,000 71,760,000
Deferred amount on refunding (1,642,175) — 290,032 (1,352,143) (270,818)
Revenue bonds, net 1,142,612,825 113,490,000 (74,089,968) 1,182,012,857 71,489,182
General obligation bonds 2,106,901 — (655,587) 1,451,314 663,330
Bond issue premium, net of
accumulated amortization 35,270,060 12,455,754 (7,881,533) 39,844,281 7,548,149
Compensated absences 385,686 (18,891) 366,795 59,705
Long-term liabilities § 1,180,375,472 125,945,754 (82,645,979) 1,223,675,247 79,760,366
The Authority is responsible for liquidating all long-term liabilities.
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(7) Return of Federal Funds

During fiscal years 1992 — 1995, the Department participated in the Federal Highway Administration’s
(FHWA) Right-of-Way (ROW) Revolving Fund program and received a total of $7,999,719 to be used for
the Advanced Right-of-Way Corridor Preservation project on SR-1. One parcel of land was purchased
using the ROW funds but was subsequently sold. Due to the inability of the Department to commence a
qualifying project within the required 10 years of FHWA apportionment, the funds must be repaid to the
FHWA.

The Department has agreed upon a payment plan with FHWA where all of the funds will be returned by
the end of fiscal year 2015 in accordance with the years of obligation. The first payment of $2 million was
paid in June, 2011. $3 million is expected to be paid in July, 2013 with the balance being paid in July,
2015.

(8) General Obligation Bonds Outstanding
General obligation bonds outstanding at June 30, 2011 and 2010 are detailed as follows:

Maturity
date Balance outstanding
(fiscal June 30

Sale # Description and interest rates year) 2011 2010
194 GO 2005B, 5.00% 2015 $ 473,708 587,160
191 GO + Refunding 2004A, 3.00% — 6.00% 2014 45,050 60,066
188 GO Refunding 2003B, 4.00% — 5.00% 2012 216,376 698,388
185 GO + Refunding 2002A, 4.00% — 5.25% 2013 52,850 105,700
Totals 787,984 1,451,314
Less current portion 346,503 663,330
Long-term portion $ 441,481 787,984

The general obligation bonds are direct obligations of the State of Delaware and are secured by the full
faith and credit of the State. Only that portion of the bonds attributable to the Trust Fund has been reflected
in these financial statements.

21 (Continued)
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The annual requirement to amortize all general obligation bonds payable as of June 30, 2011 was as

follows:
Principal Interest
maturity maturity Total
Year ending June 30:
2012 $ 346,503 30,923 377,426
2013 195,189 17,951 213,140
2014 142,866 9,777 152,643
2015 103,426 4,137 107,563
$ 787,984 62,788 850,772
22 (Continued)
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Revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2011 and 2010 are detailed as follows:

Date of
issue/

maturity

Amount
of original
issue

Description and fixed
interest rates

Balance outstanding

June 30

2011

2010

Senior bonds:

2000/2020

2001/2021

2002/2022

2003/2023

2004/2024

2005/2025

2006/2026

2007/2021

2008/2028

83,995,000

85,000,000

173,680,000

277,210,000

167,550,000

150,000,000

127,445,000

87,890,000

84,720,000

Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds,
2000 Series, 5.50%

Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds,
2001 Series, 4.50% — 5.00%

Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds,

2002 Series B, 4.00% — 5.25%

Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds,
2003 Series, 4.50% — 5.00%

Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds,
2004 Series, 4.00% — 5.00%

Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds,
2005 Series, 4.25% — 5.00%

Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds,
2006 Series, 3.50% — 5.00%

Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds,
2007A Series, 4.00 — 5.00%

Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds,
2008A Series, 4.00 — 5.00%

23

94,215,000

126,955,000

145,205,000

134,245,000

111,600,000

70,945,000

77,275,000

3,910,000

24,415,000

98,245,000

153,305,000

149,330,000

139,510,000

116,240,000

79,280,000

82,450,000
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Date of Amount Balance outstanding
issue/ of original Description and fixed June 30
maturity issue interest rates 2011 2010
Senior bonds:

2008/2029 $ 117,875,000 Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds,
2008B Series, 4.00%— 5.00% $ 114,135,000 117,875,000

2009/2029 105,315,000  Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds,
2009A Series, 5.00% 105,315,000 105,315,000
2010/2019 47,715,000  Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds,
2010A Series, 2.50% — 5.00% 47,715,000 —
2010/2030 72,120,000  Transportation System Senior
Revenue Bonds,
2010B Series, 3.95% — 5.80% 72,120,000 —
GARVEE bonds:
2010/2025 113,490,000  Transportation System
Grant Anticipation Bonds,
2010 Series, 2.00% — 5.00% 111,155,000 113,490,000
Totals, gross 1,210,880,000 1,183,365,000
Less deferred amount on
refunding 1,628,306 1,352,143
Totals, net 1,209,251,694 1,182,012,857
Less current portion 75,960,451 71,489,182
Long-term portion $ 1,133,291,243 1,110,523,675

The Transportation System Senior Revenue Bonds have fixed interest rates and are limited obligations of
the Authority secured only by the pledged revenues of the Authority. The pledged revenues of the
Authority were as follows at June 30:

2011 2010
Pledged operating revenues $ 372,613,034 360,831,526
Investment income 3,573,314 3,116,721
$ 376,186,348 363,948,247
24 (Continued)
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The Transportation System GARVEE Bonds have fixed interest rates and are limited obligations of the
Authority secured by and payable solely from the annual federal appropriation for the State’s federal-aid
transportation projects. On average, the State has been apportioned approximately $131 million in federal
highway aid annually over the past five fiscal years. At that level, principal and interest payments on the
GARVEE bonds are expected to require approximately 8% of pledged federal highway aid annually. While
the Authority believes that sufficient pledged federal highway aid will be available during the term of the
bonds to meet all required principal and interest payments, various factors beyond the Authority’s control
may impact the ability to make all payments when due, including, but not limited to, subsequent
reauthorizations of federal highway aid and federal budgetary limitations.

The revenue bonds do not constitute a debt of the State or of any political subdivision thereof, or a pledge
of the general taxing power or the faith and credit of the State or of any such political subdivision.

The Authority had a total of $235,628,520 and $200,199,267 in authorized but unissued revenue bonds at
June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, to fund a portion of the Department of Transportation Capital
Improvement Program.

The annual requirement to amortize all revenue bonds payable as of June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Principal Interest
maturity maturity Total
Year(s) ending June 30:
2012 $ 76,320,000 56,411,305 132,731,305
2013 83,230,000 52,211,545 135,441,545
2014 82,160,000 48,135,226 130,295,226
2015 82,650,000 44,187,406 126,837,406
2016 80,450,000 40,293,701 120,743,701
2017-2021 380,170,000 145,796,916 525,966,916
2022 -2026 308,335,000 63,457,527 371,792,527
2027-2031 117,565,000 12,549,795 130,114,795
$ 1210,880,000 463,043,421 1,673,923.,421

On December 9, 2010, the Trust Fund issued $47,715,000 of Transportation System Senior Revenue
Bonds, 2010A Series to provide $27,155,000 in new proceeds for transportation projects and $20,560,000
for an advance refunding of the following Transportation System Senior Revenue Bonds:

2001 Series $ 20,560,000

The refunding was undertaken to reduce the total future debt service payments. The transaction resulted in
an economic gain of $2,430,367 and a reduction of $2,631,383 in future debt service payments.
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Debt Defeasance

The Authority has defeased various bond issues by creating separate irrevocable trust funds. New debt had
been issued and the proceeds had been used to purchase U.S. government Securities that were placed in the
trust funds. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments are sufficient to fully service the

defeased debt until the debt is called or matures.

For financial reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and, therefore, removed as a
liability. As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the amount of defeased debt outstanding amounted to $62,106,800

and $151,610,621, respectively.

Designated Net Assets

For operations, unrestricted net assets designated by management were as follows at June 30:

2011

2010

DTC Transit Fund:
Unexpended appropriations authorized by the State Budget

Bills were carried forward as a designated net asset.
For the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the
DTC Transit Fund expended authorized appropriations
amounting to $73,524,092 and $73,525,141, respectively.
The remaining totals of budgeted appropriations to be
paid in future periods are: $ 164,289

Other Transportation Funds:

Authorized appropriations expended to fund State highway
administration, planning, operating costs, and
Expressways Operations/Toll Administration operations
for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 were
$134,286,958 and $140,825,431, respectively.
Unexpended appropriations have been designated for
approved expenses and are classified as designated
net assets in the amounts of: 14,988,801

162,180

12,937,820

Total designated net assets $ 15,153,090

13,100,000

26
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(12) Restricted Net Assets

Restricted net assets were as follows at June 30:

Rebate Fund:
Amounts generated from operations to meet future
arbitrage rebate requirements

Debt Service Funds:
Amounts generated from operations required by the
Trust Agreement to be provided to meet current
principal and interest payments

Debt Reserve Funds:
Amounts generated from operations required by the
Trust Agreement to be provided as a reserve for future
principal and interest payments

Total restricted net assets

(13) International Registration Plan

$

2011 2010
994,570 461,864
101,774,934 94,910,090
68,013,371 64,529,014
170,782,875 159,900,968

The Department participates in the International Registration Plan (IRP) pursuant to Section 4008 of the
Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) of 1991. ISTEA requires jurisdictions to join
base state agreements for the collection and distribution of commercial vehicle registration fees. IRP is an
agreement among member jurisdictions whereby commercial registration fees are collected and reallocated

based on a proration of miles traveled in each jurisdiction.

Net revenues recorded during fiscal years 2011 and 2010 were $9,006,644 and $8,277,904, respectively.

IRP fees were included in motor vehicle registration fee revenue.

(14) International Fuel Tax Agreement

The Department of Transportation participates in the International Fuel Tax Agreement (IFTA). IFTA is an
agreement among member jurisdictions whereby commercial license fees are collected and reallocated
based on a proration of miles traveled in each jurisdiction. Net revenues recorded during fiscal years 2011

and 2010 were $2,859,018 and $2,850,720, respectively.

(15) Retirement Benefits

**DRAFT**v2

Essentially all full-time Expressways Operations/Toll Administration employees are covered under the
State of Delaware Defined Benefit Pension Plan (the Pension Plan), which is administered by the Office of
Pension and Investments. The Pension Plan is contributory, and employees contribute 3% of the portion of
their monthly compensation that exceeds $6,000 per calendar year. Contributions by the Expressways

27
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Operations/Toll Administration are based on percentages of total employee compensation as specified by
the Office of Pension and Investments.

In addition to the Pension Plan contribution disclosed above, the Trust Fund makes contributions to finance
the costs of Post Retirement Increases (PRI) and Retiree Health Insurance (RHI). PRI are granted by the
General Assembly to members retired under the State Employees’ Plan. The funding mechanism allows
the State to appropriate actuarially determined employer contributions to a separate PRI fund administered
by the Pension Board. When the Legislature grants an ad hoc increase, the actuarial impact of the increase
is funded over five years.

The State also provides other postemployment benefits (OPEB), in accordance with State statute, to all
employees who retire after meeting certain eligibility requirements. The expenses for this benefit are
recognized as RHI contributions are made; no allocation of the statewide Annual Required Contribution
(ARC) that is in excess of the RHI is made to the Trust Fund.

The trend information for the current and preceding two years was as follows as of June 30:

Annual
retirement Employer contribution rate
Fiscal year expense Pension plan PRI RHI Total
2011 $ 591,590 8.30% 0.81% 8.09% 17.20%
2010 558,297 6.71 1.40 7.16 15.27
2009 636,174 6.68 2.20 6.99 15.87

The State does not maintain the Pension Plan and OPEB information by agency, and therefore, the
Expressways Operations/Toll Administration’s portion of the Pension Plan’s net assets available for
benefits, percentage of annual pension cost contributed, and the actuarial present value of vested and
nonvested accumulated plan benefits is not readily determinable.

Detailed information concerning the State of Delaware “State Employees Pension Plan” is presented in its
publicly available annual basic financial statements, which can be obtained by writing the State Board of
Pension Trustees and Office of Pensions, McArdle Building, Suite #1, 860 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover,
DE 19904-2402.

Information regarding the OPEB valuation is available in the State of Delaware comprehensive annual
financial report.
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(16) Transfers
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(18)

(19)
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The following is a summary of transfers during the years ended June 30:

2011 2010

Amounts transferred from State General Fund:
Amounts transferred to the Revenue Fund:
Division of Revenue, Motor Vehicle Dealer/Lessor
License, and Document F ees $ — 153,239
Amounts transferred to the Trust Fund:
Division of Motor Vehicles 2,950,000 2,842,000
Division of Revenue, Motor Vehicle Dealer/Lessor
License, and Document F ees 283,343 116,363
Supplemental appropriation from fiscal year Bond Bill 14,000,000
Supplemental appropriation from fiscal year
Grant-in-Aid Bill 10,000,000

$ 27,233,343 3,111,602

Amounts transferred from Delaware
Department of Transportation:
Amounts transferred to the Trust Fund:
Buildings and land improvements $ — 289,380

Related Party Transactions

Per the terms of the Trust Agreement, the Trust Fund is responsible for reimbursing the State for the
Department’s operating, maintenance, and capital expenses financed by the State’s General Fund. In
addition, the Trust Fund is responsible for maintaining funds appropriated by the General Assembly for the
Delaware Transit Corporation (DTC), and reimbursing DTC for its operating and capital expenses up to
the total amount of the appropriated funds. Total reimbursements for the years ended June 30, 2011 and
2010 were $323,687,001 and $324,986,606, respectively. These amounts are included under the caption
“Expenses in accordance with Trust Agreement” in the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses,
and change in net assets.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Authority had contractual commitments of $36,122,879 for construction of various highway projects
at June 30, 2011. Current and future appropriations will fund these commitments as work is performed.

Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to workers’ compensation, healthcare, automobile,
and casualty claims. The Authority is a participant in the State of Delaware’s Risk Management Program,
which covers all claim settlements and judgments out of its General Fund. The Authority pays premiums to
the General Fund for this coverage.
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Bridge condition assessments

Structural rating numbers and percentages for bridges

BCR condition 2010 2009 2008
rating Number Percentage Number Percentage Number Percentage
Good 6-9 108 92.3% 110 93.2% 108 90.8%
Fair 5 9 7.7 8 6.8 10 8.4
Poor 0-4 — — — — 1 0.8
Totals 117 100.0% 118 100.0% 119 100.0%
Deck rating numbers and percentages for bridges
2010 2009 2008
OPC condition Square Square Square
rating feet Percentage feet Percentage feet Percentage
Good 6-9 1,525,483 93.4% 1,578,689 96.6% 1,578,689 96.6%
Fair 5 108,306 6.6 55,994 34 55,994 3.4
Poor 0